
 

Democratic Services democratic.services@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 *Subject to ratification or change at the annual 
meeting of Full Council on 14 May 2009. 

 

Title: Audit Committee 

Date: 19 May 2009 

Time: 4.00pm 

Venue Committee Room 1, Hove Town Hall 

Members: *Councillors: 
Hamilton (Chairman), Alford, Kitcat, Lainchbury, 
Oxley, Randall, Simpson, Smith, G Theobald 
and Watkins (Deputy Chairman) 

Contact: Jane Clarke 
Democratic Services Officer 
01273 291064 
jane.clarke@brighton-hove.gov.uk 

 
The Town Hall has facilities for wheelchair users, 
including lifts and toilets 

 

T  

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for 
anyone wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter 
and infra red hearing aids are available for use 
during the meeting.  If you require any further 
information or assistance, please contact the 
receptionist on arrival. 

  

 FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 
 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are 
instructed to do so, you must leave the building by 
the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to 
the nearest exit by council staff.  It is vital that you 
follow their instructions: 
 

• You should proceed calmly; do not run and do 
not use the lifts; 

• Do not stop to collect personal belongings; 

• Once you are outside, please do not wait 
immediately next to the building, but move 
some distance away and await further 
instructions; and 

• Do not re-enter the building until told that it is 
safe to do so. 

 



 

 
 

Press 

Public Seating 

Officers in Attendance 

Members in Attendance 

Cllr David 
Watkins 

Cllr Bill 
Randall 

Cllr Jason 
Kitcat 

Cllr 
Christine 
Simpson 

Cllr David 
Smith 

Cllr Brian 
Oxley 

Cllr Paul 
Lainchbury 

Cllr Trevor 
Alford 

Cllr Geoffrey 
Theobald 

Director Cllr Les 
Hamilton 

Lawyer Head of Audit 
& Business 

Risk 

Democratic Services: Meeting Layout 
 

Democratic 
Services 
Officer 



AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part One Page 
 

103. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS  

 (a) Declaration of Substitutes - Where Councillors are unable to attend a 
meeting, a substitute Member from the same Political Group may 
attend, speak and vote in their place for that meeting. 

 
(b) Declarations of Interest by all Members present of any personal 

interests in matters on the agenda, the nature of any interest and 
whether the Members regard the interest as prejudicial under the 
terms of the Code of Conduct.  

 
(c) Exclusion of Press and Public - To consider whether, in view of the 

nature of the business to be transacted, or the nature of the 
proceedings, the press and public should be excluded from the 
meeting when any of the following items are under consideration. 

 
NOTE:  Any item appearing in Part 2 of the Agenda states in its 
heading the category under which the information disclosed in the 
report is exempt from disclosure and therefore not available to the 
public. 

 
A list and description of the exempt categories is available for public 
inspection at Brighton and Hove Town Halls. 

 

 

104. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 1 - 8 

 Minutes of the meeting held on 31 March 2009 (copy attached).  
 

105. CHAIRMAN'S COMMUNICATIONS  

 

106. PETITIONS  

 No petitions received by date of publication.   
 

107. PUBLIC QUESTIONS  

 (The closing date for receipt of public questions is 12 noon on 12 May 
2009). 
 
No public questions received by date of publication. 

 

 

108. DEPUTATIONS  

 (The closing date for receipt of deputations is 12 noon on 12 May 2009). 
 
No deputations received by date of publication. 

 

 
 



AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
 

109. LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS  

 No letters have been received.   
 

110. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS  

 No written questions have been received.  
 

111. AUDIT COMMISSION UPDATE REPORT  

 Report from the Audit Commission (copy to follow).  
 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

112. ANNUAL AUDIT AND INSPECTION FEES LETTERS (INCLUDING 
BROAD COVERAGE) 

9 - 16 

 Report from the Audit Commission (copy attached).  
 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

113. ASSURANCES FROM THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE  

 Report from the Audit Commission (copy to follow). 
Ward Affected:      All Wards  

 

 

114. INTERNAL AUDIT STRATEGY AND ANNUAL PLAN 2009/2010 17 - 60 

 Report of the Assistant Director of Finance and Resources (copy 
attached). 

 

 Contact Officer: Ian Withers Tel: 29-1323  
 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

115. REVIEW OF THE EFFECTIVENESS OF SYSTEMS OF INTERNAL 
AUDIT 

 

 Report of the Assistant Director of Finance and Resources (copy to 
follow). 

 

 Contact Officer: Ian Withers Tel: 29-1323  
 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

116. RISK AND OPPORTUNITY MANAGEMENT (ROM) UPDATE - 
CORPORATE RISK REGISTER 2009-10 

61 - 70 

 Report of the Assistant Director of Finance and Resources (copy 
attached). 

 

 Contact Officer: Jackie Algar Tel: 29-1273  
 Ward Affected: All Wards;   
 

 PART TWO 

117. PART TWO MINUTES - EXEMPT CATEGORY 3 71 - 74 

 Restricted Minutes of the meeting held on 31 March 2009 (copy 
attached). 

 

 



AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 
 

 

The City Council actively welcomes members of the public and the press to attend its 
meetings and holds as many of its meetings as possible in public.  Provision is also made 
on the agendas for public questions to committees and details of how questions can be 
raised can be found on the website and/or on agendas for the meetings. 
 
The closing date for receipt of public questions and deputations for the next meeting is 12 
noon on the fifth working day before the meeting. 
 
Agendas and minutes are published on the council’s website www.brighton-hove.gov.uk.  
Agendas are available to view five working days prior to the meeting date. 
 
Meeting papers can be provided, on request, in large print, in Braille, on audio tape or on 
disc, or translated into any other language as requested. 
 
For further details and general enquiries about this meeting contact Jane Clarke, (01273 
291064, email jane.clarke@brighton-hove.gov.uk) or email democratic.services@brighton-
hove.gov.uk  
 

 

Date of Publication - Monday, 11 May 2009 

 

 

 





 

AUDIT COMMITTEE Agenda Item 104 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 
 

BRIGHTON & HOVE CITY COUNCIL 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 

4.00pm 31 MARCH 2009 
 

COMMITTEE ROOM 1, HOVE TOWN HALL 
 

MINUTES 
 

Present: Councillors Hamilton (Chairman), Alford, Kitcat, Oxley, Pidgeon, Randall, Simpson, 
Smith, Watkins (Deputy Chairman) and Wells 
 

 
 

PART ONE 
 
 

84. PROCEDURAL BUSINESS 
 
84a Declaration of Substitute Members 
 
84.1 Councillor Wells declared that he was substituting for Councillor Lainchbury. 
 
84.2 Councillor Pidgeon declared that he was substituting for Councillor G Theobald. 
 
84b Declarations of Interest 
 
84.3 Councillor Simpson declared a personal interest in item 94 arising from being involved in 

the Local Delivery Vehicle. 
 
84.4 Councillor Wells declared a personal interest in item 94 arising from being involved with 

the Local Delivery Vehicle. 
 
84.5 Councillor Randall declared a personal interest in item 102 arising from being a school 

governor. 
 
84.6 Councillor Kitcat declared a personal interest in item 102 arising from being a school 

governor. 
 
84.7 Councillor Hamilton declared a personal interest in item 102 arising from being a school 

governor. 
 
84c Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 
84.8 In accordance with section 100A of the Local Government Act 1972 (‘the Act’), the Audit 

Committee considered whether the press and public should be excluded from the 
meeting during an item of business on the grounds that it was likely, in view of the 

1



 

 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 31 MARCH 2009 

nature of the business to be transacted or the nature of the proceedings, that if 
members of the press or public were present during that item, there would be disclosure 
to them of confidential information (as defined in section 100A(3) of the Act) or exempt 
information (as defined in section 100I of the Act). 

 
84.9 RESOLVED - That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 

consideration of item 99, Non-Public Minutes of the previous meeting, item 100, 
Corporate Risk Management Action Plans Focus, item 101, Payroll Audit and item 102, 
Schools Financial Management Audit Report as these items were exempt under 
Paragraph 3 of Schedule 12A of the 1972 Act (information relating to the financial or 
business affairs of the authority). 

 
85. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
85.1 RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 24 February 2009 be approved 

and signed by the Chairman as a correct record. 
 
86. CHAIRMAN'S COMMUNICATIONS 
 
86.1 The Chairman addressed Members and stated that the future start times of the 

Committee would remain at 16:00. 
 
86.2 The Chairman welcomed Senior Performance Analyst, Andy Edwards, Performance 

Analyst, Richards Miles and Sandra Prail from the Audit Commission, to the meeting. 
 
87. PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 
87.1 There were none. 
 
88. WRITTEN QUESTIONS FROM COUNCILLORS 
 
88.1 There were none. 
 
89. DEPUTATIONS 
 
89.1 There were none. 
 
90. PETITIONS 
 
90.1 There were none. 
 
91. LETTERS FROM COUNCILLORS 
 
91.1 There were none. 
 
92. CAA USE OF RESOURCES AND AUDIT COMMITTEE ROLE 
 
92.1 The Performance Analyst gave a presentation to the Committee Members on the 

Comprehensive Area Assessment and the role of the Audit Committee. It was 
highlighted that the new Comprehensive Area Assessment would begin in April 2009 

2



 

 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 31 MARCH 2009 

and would be comprised of two elements: the first an area assessment on the outcomes 
of the Local Area Agreement and Community Strategy; and the second an 
organisational assessment examining the performance of the Authority and the Use of 
Resources statement. A strong element of the CAA would be in helping people to 
understand whether they are getting value for money from their local services. 

 
92.2 Councillor Smith noted that the authority was limited in some regard by financial 

regulations and asked how they would marry with the expectations of the public. The 
Performance Analyst agreed and stated that the Use of Resources statement would be 
a key document in helping people to understand the finances of the Council, but also 
there would also have to be an element of managing the expectations of the public. 

 
92.3 Councillor Oxley asked whether the ‘Reducing Inequality’ review would be fed into the 

CAA process and the Performance Analyst stated that it would, but an updated review 
would have to be conducted to reflect the requirements of the process. 

 
92.4 Councillor Randall asked what the cost implications were to the Council in the new 

system and the Performance Analyst stated that it was predicted to be a reduced cost 
burden as it was a rolling process that would be continually updated once set into 
motion. 

 
92.5 Councillor Randall noted that a new ‘flag’ system was going to be used to indicate good 

and bad areas of assessment and asked for a further explanation of this. The 
Performance Analyst stated that not every outcome would receive a flag and that only 
those that needed highlighting, for either good or bad reasons, would be flagged up by 
the Audit Commission. This would provide members of the public with an easy way to 
assess the performance of the authority against its stated aims.  
 
Councillor Randall asked what was indicated for outcomes without flags and the 
Performance Analyst stated that a detailed written assessment would accompany each 
outcome to enable people to judge how well the authority had performed in that area. 

 
92.6 Councillor Randall asked what level of customer involvement there would be in the CAA 

and the Performance Analyst stated that Satisfaction Surveys and Place Surveys would 
feed into the process. Information gathering from groups of interest in how well the 
authority was performing would also be conducted and fed in. 

 
92.7 Sandra Prail addressed the Committee and stated that the CAA was primarily a 

narrative for a public audience and would involve the input of several difference 
agencies. It would be an outcome focussed analysis and those areas where outcomes 
needed to be looked at would take priority and receive a higher level of assessment 
detail. The 2020 Partnership was already starting to identify groups who could have a 
positive input into the process, and this would be an ongoing process to ensure co-
operation between all interested parties. 

 
92.8 Councillor Kitcat asked for clarification that the star rating system would be gone and felt 

that the new system was not a very clear way of indicating to residents how well the 
authority was performing. The Performance Analyst stated that it should be a more 
realistic appraisal of the authority, and that one of the criticisms of the star rating system 
had been that it was not truly representative of how well an authority was doing. The 

3



 

 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 31 MARCH 2009 

new system was seeking to address this criticism and the first cycle would give a clearer 
indication of how well it was working. 

 
92.9 Ms Prail noted there were two elements to the CAA; the area assessment and the 

organisational assessment. The organisational assessment would still be scored in a 
similar way to previously. 

 
92.10 Councillor Watkins asked when the first report was due and Ms Prail stated that the 

organisational assessment would come to the Audit Committee in November 2009 and 
the area assessment would go to the Local Strategic Partnership. 

 
92.11 Councillor Watkins asked who would be responsible for ensuring the recommendations 

of the area assessment were followed through and Ms Prail stated that it would be 
delivered to the LSP, of which the Council was a partner, but the Council would be 
responsible for ensuring the recommendations relating to its services were acted on. 

 
92.12 RESOLVED – That the report on the Comprehensive Area Assessment and Audit 

Committee Role is noted. 
 
93. AUDIT COMMISSION UPDATE REPORT 
 
93.1 Grahame Brown from the Audit Commission presented an oral update to the Committee 

on the work of the Audit Commission. He noted that the Commission had been very 
busy lately and a formal report would be brought to the Committee in May 2009. They 
were currently working on the Governance review, which had been deferred for further 
discussions with Officers to take place, and discussions had taken place with Officers 
regarding the Local Delivery Vehicle and the Building Schools for the Future 
programme. Advice and assistance had been given to the Housing Management Teams 
regarding their processes and an action plan with recommendations would be brought to 
the Audit Committee in due course. 

 
93.2 RESOLVED – That the Committee notes the Audit Commission Update report. 
 
94. ANNUAL AUDIT & INSPECTION LETTER 
 
94.1 Ms Prail addressed the Committee and presented a report of the Audit Commission on 

the Annual Audit and Inspection Letter (for copy see minute book). 
 
 Ms Prail stated that this was the last retrospective Annual Audit and Inspection Letter 

that the Committee would receive under this regime. The content had been agreed by 
Officers for the Council and by Cabinet and it was noted that the authority had received 
a four star rating with significant improvements being seen for the Use of Resources 
Statement. It was noted that the Local Delivery Vehicle was still under performing but 
recommendations for this had been given in the report, which reinforced actions that the 
authority was already initiating. 

 
94.2 Councillor Hamilton asked about the score rating and Ms Prail stated that an authority 

would need to gain at least three stars in every area to achieve a four star rating. 
 

4



 

 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 31 MARCH 2009 

94.3 Councillor Randall asked if the areas for assessment were weighted differently and Ms 
Prail confirmed this was the case. 

 
94.4 RESOLVED – That the Committee agrees the Annual Audit and Inspection Letter. 
 
95. COUNTER FRAUD STRATEGY UPDATE 
 
95.1 The Head of Audit and Business Risk presented an update to the Committee on the 

Counter Fraud Strategy and stated that this was part of the key arrangements which laid 
out the Council’s response to potential high risks. 

 
There had been no evidence so far that fraud had been a major problem within the 
Council but vigilance was needed as instances of fraud commonly rise during times of 
recession. An update to the fraud loss measurement was being carried out to assess 
potential losses. 

 
95.2 The Chairman asked if Brighton & Hove City Council had many ‘whistleblowers’ over the 

years, and the Head of Audit and Business Risk that they had received a fair number of 
referrals of investigation over the hotline and a proportion were passed on to the Police 
for criminal investigation. 

 
95.3 Councillor Oxley asked whether the protocols on publicity for fraud cases had been 

changed and the Head of Audit and Business Risk stated that the Council would seek to 
publicise any positive results from investigation cases as appropriate. He noted that 
most had been due to housing benefit fraud and the department would work closely with 
the communications department to any fraud case. 

 
95.4 Councillor Watkins asked whether the Council had many instances of corruption. The 

Head of Audit and Business Risk stated that potential instances of corruption had been 
investigated but no actual findings identified at the Council. There was training available 
on fraud awareness for staff and members. 

 
95.5 Councillor Smith raised concern that unintentional corruption could take place for 

members if the circumstances had occurred several years ago. The Head of Audit and 
Business Risk stated that all interests should be declared of the register of interests 
which was available for the entire time the member served. 

 
95.6 RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND – That Counter Fraud Strategy is approved by the 

Governance Committee.  
 
96. CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
96.1 The Head of Audit and Business Risk presented a report on the Code of Corporate 

Governance and stated that this formed part of the Council’s constitution, which was a 
best practise procedure at local authorities. The Code states six key principles that form 
a statement of intent for the Council, with following points for each principle to ensure 
their full achievement by the Council. 

 
96.2 Councillor Kitcat asked why the Committee was receiving the report when there were no 

financial or other implications given, and the Head of Audit and Business Risk stated 

5



 

 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 31 MARCH 2009 

that the Committee was being asked to recommend the adoption of the Code by Full 
Council and it was part of good governance procedures to bring the draft Code to the 
Audit Committee. 

 
96.3 Mr Browne from the Audit Commission added that the Code would underpin much of the 

audit assessment work being done for the Comprehensive Area Assessment and it was 
implicitly required to achieve a good CAA rating. 

 
96.4 Councillor Randall asked what the key revisions of the Code were and the Head of Audit 

and Business Risk stated that it had been simplified to encourage understanding, but no 
radical changes had been made. 

 
96.5 RESOLVED TO RECOMMEND – That the Code of Corporate Governance be adopted. 
 
97. INTERNAL AUDIT CHARTER 
 
97.1 The Committee considered a report of the Interim Director of Strategy & Governance on 

the Internal Audit Charter (for copy see minute book). 
 
97.2 The Head of Audit and Business Risk stated that the charter formed the terms of 

reference for the Audit and Business Risk function, as recommended by the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance & Accountancy’s Code of Best Practice for Internal Audit in 
Local Government, and was required to be annually agreed by the Audit Committee. 
Key features of the Charter were ensuring the independence of the audit function and 
maintaining audit reporting lines within the Council. Changes to the Charter for this year 
were minor, but recognised that business risk was back under the remit of the audit 
function. 

 
97.3 RESOLVED – That the Committee approves the Internal Audit Charter for 2009. 
 
98. RISK & OPPORTUNITY MANAGEMENT UPDATE 
 
98.1 The Committee considered an oral report from the Risk and Opportunity Manager on the 

Risk & Opportunity Management update. She stated that she had met with project 
managers to improve risk registers and offer assistance to project groups and boards for 
the Local Delivery Vehicle, the Personalisation Agenda and the Fleet Project. 

 
 The Risk and Opportunity Manager had been working with the Children’s and Young 

Person’s Trust on an assurance framework similar to the ROM strategy and the CYPT 
Risk Register had been refreshed. Regular meetings were to take place with the 
Southdowns NHS Trust and the CYPT risk leads to share risk registers and good 
practice. 

 
A pilot software programme for risk and opportunity management was being developed 
that linked in with business planning and personnel management, and an e-learning 
programme was almost complete. The ROM Strategy Update and progress reporting on 
the annual ROM programme 2009/10 would provide further information to Committee in 
summer 2009.  

 

6



 

 
 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 31 MARCH 2009 

98.2 RESOLVED – That the Committee notes the Risk and Opportunity Management 
update. 

 
99. PART TWO MINUTES - EXEMPT CATEGORY 3 
 
99.1 The Chairman was requested to approve and sign the non-public minutes of the 

meeting held on 24 February 2009. 
 
100. CORPORATE RISK MANAGEMENT ACTION PLANS FOCUS - EXEMPT CATEGORY 

3 
 
100.1 RESOLVED – That the Committee notes the Corporate Risk Management Action Plans 

Focus. 
 
101. PAYROLL AUDIT - EXEMPT CATEGORY 3 
 
101.1 RESOLVED – That the Committee notes the Payroll Audit update. 
 
102. SCHOOLS FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AUDIT REPORT - EXEMPT CATEGORY 3 
 
102.1 RESOLVED – That the Committee notes the Schools Financial Management Audit 

Report. 
 

 
The meeting concluded at 6.00pm 

 
Signed 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Chair 

Dated this day of  
 

7



8



Audit Commission, 2nd Floor The Agora, Ellen Street, Hove, East Sussex BN3 3LN 
T 0844 798 6143 F 0844 798 6187  www.audit-commission.gov.uk 

28th  April 2009

Ref: SP/SS/DM Mr Alex Bailey 

Acting Chief Executive 

Brighton & Hove City Council 

Kings House 

Grand Avenue 

Hove

BN3 2LS 

Telephone:

Mob:

Email:

0844 798 2389 

07790 775060 

s-prail@audit-

commission.gov.uk

Dear Alex 

Annual inspection fee 2009/10 

I am writing to confirm the assessment and inspection work that we propose to undertake for the 
2009/10 financial year at Brighton and Hove City Council. The inspection fee: 

  is based on the risk-based approach to inspection planning as set out in the 
Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) framework and associated guidance; and 

  reflects only the Audit Commission’s inspection work, excluding any audit fees. Your 
appointed auditor will be writing to you separately on fees for audit work. 

CAA will deliver a more proportionate and risk based approach to inspection, targeting only high 
risk services and outcomes for inspection where alternative improvement activity is not 
appropriate. The inspection plan will be reviewed and updated as necessary.    

The total indicative fee for inspection for 2009/10 is £18 293 and is shown in the table below. 
The inspection fee has been set in accordance with the Audit Commission‘s work programme 
and scales of fees 2009/10. 

Assessment and inspection work plan and fee 

Assessment / inspection activity Planned fee for 2009/10 

Area assessment of local partnership n/a (CLG grant funded)

Managing performance theme of organisational assessment £18 293 

Risk based inspection n/a

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE                 Agenda Item 112 
                                                                                                                      Brighton & Hove City Council  

9



2

 Total inspection fee £18 293

If I need to make any significant amendments to the inspection plan and fee during the course 
of the year, I will first discuss this with you and then confirm in writing outlining the reasons for 
the change, including the proposed scope for the work.

The above fee excludes any work you requested and the Commission has agreed to undertake 
using its advice and assistance powers.   

If you have any questions regarding this letter, please contact me in the first instance. 
Alternatively you may wish to contact the South East (sub) Region Head of Operations, Neil 
Childs.

Yours sincerely, 

Sandra Prail 
Comprehensive Area Assessment Lead (Sussex) 

cc Mrs Catherine Vaughan 

10



Audit Commission, The Agora, Ellen Street, Hove, East Sussex, BN3 3LN 
T 0844 798 6143 F 0844 798 6187  www.audit-commission.gov.uk 

23 April 2009 

Direct line 0844 798 1790 Mr Alex Bailey 
Acting Chief Executive 
Brighton & Hove City Council 
Kings House  
Grand Avenue 
Hove  BN32SR 

Email helen-thompson@audit-

commission.gov.uk

Dear Alex 

Annual audit fee 2009/10 

Further to our discussions and those that Grahame Brown had with Richard Szadziewski, I am 
writing to confirm the audit work that we propose to undertake for the 2009/10 financial year at 
the Council. The fee: 

  is based on the risk-based approach to audit planning as set out in the Code of Audit 
Practice and work mandated by the Audit Commission for 2009/10; and

  reflects only the audit element of our work, excluding any inspection and assessment 
fees. Sandra Prail as the Council’s Comprehensive Area Assessment Lead will write to 
you separately on inspection fees.

I do need to make you aware that the audit planning process for 2009/10 will be subject to 
review and updated as necessary as I have not yet completed my audit for 2008/09. 

The total indicative fee for the audit for 2009/10 is for £367,895 (exclusive of VAT) which 
compares to the planned fee of £323,468 for 2008/09. A summary of the different elements of 
the fee and a comparison to 2008/09 is shown below. 

Audit area Planned fee 
2009/10

Planned fee 
2008/09

Financial statements 196,585 187,925

Use of Resources/VFM Conclusion 

(including risk based work) 

167,640 132,040

WGA 3,670 3,503

Total audit fee 367,895 323,468

Claims and returns certification (estimate) 60,000 80,000

11



2

The Commission has published its work programme and scales of fees 2009/10. Based on this 
the Council’s scale fee is £367,895 and this is the fee proposed for 2009/10.

In setting the fee at this time I have assumed that the general level of risk in relation to our work 
on the financial statements is not significantly different from that expected in 2008/09. A specific 
plan for this will be sent to the Council in December 2009 which will detail the financial 
statements risks identified, our planned audit procedures and any changes in fee for this 
element of our audit.

The fee for grant certification work is an estimate and will be charged at the rates published by 
the Commission.

If I need to make any significant amendments to the audit fee during the course of the audit, I 
will first discuss this with the Director of Finance & Resources and then prepare a report 
explaining the reasons for discussion with the Audit Committee.

One key element of my use of resources work will be undertaken using the Commission’s key 
lines of enquiry for the three themes below:

  managing finances; 

  governing the business; and 

  managing resources.  

Further details can be found in the Commission’s work programme and scales of fees 2009/10. 

My work on use of resources informs my 2009/10 value for money conclusion. My planning for 
the 2009/10 audit has also identified a small number of significant risks relating to the value for 
money conclusion.

For each of these risks, I have considered the Council’s arrangements to mitigate the risk and 
set out the work planned and timings below. 

Risk Planned work Timing of work 

The Council is to let a long-
term contract for capital works 
and the repairs and 
maintenance of its housing 
stock in early 2009/10. 
Significant savings are 
expected through this 
approach.  In order to achieve 
these, the contract must be 
soundly based and contract 
management arrangements 
effective.

Key contact :Joy Hollister 

We will review the 
contract arrangements 
to establish the 
reasonableness of the 
savings proposed, how 
the savings expected 
are reflected in the 
longer-term financial 
plans for the housing 
revenue account and 
the effectiveness of the 
proposed management 
of the contracts. 

November 2009 – 
January 2010 

12



3

Risk Planned work Timing of work 

The Council’s proposed 
participation in a company that 
will manage about 500 of its 
housing units as a means of 
improving their condition is 
innovative.  However, it 
requires appropriate 
arrangements to be established 
to safeguard the Council’s 
assets and to ensure the 
company achieves the 
improvements required. 

Key contacts :Joy Hollister and 
Richard Szadziewski/Catherine 
Vaughan

We will review the 
Council’s 
arrangements at key 
stages and comment 
as necessary. 

June 2009 to 
March 2010 

The economic climate has 
impacted on the finances of 
local authorities including 
increased demand for some 
services, reduction in income 
from charges (such as car 
parking) raised and increased 
levels of debtors.  This places 
the Council’s financial health at 
risk.

Key contact: Richard 
Szadziewski / Catherine 
Vaughan

We will monitor the 
Council’s financial 
performance to see 
how well it is managing 
the impact of the 
current economic 
climate and assess the 
impact on its overall 
financial health.

June 2009 to 
March 2010 

The waste management PFI (in 
partnership with a neighbouring 
local authority) is a high profile 
arrangement and the operation 
of effective management of the 
contract with the service 
provider is essential.  Failure to 
operate effective contract 
management could be costly to 
the Council. 

Key contact: Jenny Rowlands 

We will undertake a 
high level overview of 
the Council’s approach 
in order to ensure the 
arrangements in place 
ensure that the Council 
achieves value for 
money. This builds on 
our work at previous 
audits.

June 2009 to 
March 2010 

13



4

Risk Planned work Timing of work 

Participation in the Building 
Schools for the Future 
programme is technically 
demanding and requires 
effective project management 
at all stages from the 
application phase to 
completion.  The Council will 
invest a significant amount of 
money in reaching the 
application phase and there is 
a risk that application might not 
be accepted. 

Key contact: Di Smith and 
Richard Szadziewski / 
Catherine Vaughan 

We will undertake a 
high level overview of 
the Council’s approach 
in order to ensure the 
arrangements in place 
ensure that the Council 
achieves value for 
money.

June 2009 to 
March 2010 

Project specifications for each piece of work will be issued for discussion with officers before 
work is started. 

I will issue a number of reports relating to my work over the course of the audit. These are listed 
at Appendix 1.  Where we are undertaking monitoring reviews, updates will be given as part of 
our progress reports to the Audit Committee in year. 

The above fee excludes any work requested by you that the Commission may agree to 
undertake using its advice and assistance powers.  Each piece of work will be separately 
negotiated and a detailed project specification agreed with you. 

The key members of the audit team for the 2009/10 are:

Audit Manager – Simon Mathers  0844 798 1776 

Team Leader – Jeremy Jacobs 0844 798 6121 

I am committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you are in any way dissatisfied or 
would like to discuss how we can improve our service, please contact me in the first instance. 
Alternatively you may wish to contact Neil Childs, Head of Operations, Southern Region who 
can be contacted at the following e-mail address n-childs@audit-commission.gov.uk.

Yours sincerely 

Helen Thompson 
District Auditor 

cc Richard Szadziewski, Acting Director of Finance & Resources 
cc Councillor Les Hamilton, Chair of the Audit Committee 

14



5

Appendix 1: Planned outputs 

Our reports will be discussed and agreed with the appropriate officers before being issued to the 

Audit Committee. We will also provide regular progress reports to the Audit Committee. 

Planned output Indicative date 

Housing repairs and maintenance long-
term contract review 

February 2010 

Annual governance report (to include 
updates on those work areas which are 
not reported separately) 

September 2010 

Auditor's report giving the opinion on the 
financial statements and value for money 
conclusion 

September 2010 

Use of resources report September 2010 

Final accounts report October 2010 

Annual audit letter November 2010 

15



16



AUDIT COMMITTEE Agenda Item 114 
 
Brighton & Hove City Council 

 

 

  
 

Subject: Internal Audit Strategy and Annual Audit Plan 2009-10 
Date of Meeting: 19th May 2009 
Report of: Director of Finance & Resources 
Contact Officer: Name:  Ian Withers, Head of Audit & 

Business Risk 
Tel: 29-1323 

 E-mail: Ian.withers@brighton-hove.gov.uk 
Wards Affected: All  

 

 
FOR GENERAL RELEASE 
 
 

1. SUMMARY AND POLICY CONTEXT: 
 

1.1 This report presents the Internal Audit Strategy and Annual Audit Plan for 
2009/10. 

 
1.2 The audit Committee and ultimately the council, needs assurance that internal 

controls have been effectively designed and operating in practice.   The audit 
coverage contained in the Annual Audit Plan aims to provide assurance over 
this. 

 

2. RECOMMENDATION: 
 

2.1 That Members of the Audit Committee approve the Internal Audit Strategy and 
Annual Audit Plan for 2009/10 attached at Appendix A to this report. 

 
 

3. BACKGROUND:  

 
3.1 The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2003 (as amended) require the council to 

‘maintain an adequate and effective system of internal audit of its accounting 
records and its system of internal control in accordance with proper practice’. 
The proper practice being the CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in 
Local Government 2006. 

 
3.2 Under the Code, the Head of Audit & Business Risk is required to prepare and 

Internal Audit Strategy and Audit Plan for each financial year.  The aim is to 
provide independent and objective assurance on the control environment 
consisting of internal control, risk management and corporate governance. 

 
3.3 The Internal Audit Strategy and Annual Plan provides the mechanism through 

which the Head of Audit & Business Risk can ensure the most appropriate use 
of internal audit resources to provide a clear end of year statement of 
assurance on the control environment. 

 
 
 

17



   

 

 
3.4 The Annual Audit Plan is effectively a work programme of audits, inclusion of 

which is primarily based on the greatest perceived inherent risk.  Other 
reviews may also be included based on criteria other than risk, for example 
‘mandatory’ audits or requested/commissioned by management. 

 
4. DEVELOPMENT OF THE ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN:  

 
4.1 The Annual  Audit Plan for 2009-10 was developed by the following: 
 

§ Linking with Directorate and Service Business Plans; 
§ Use of existing corporate and departmental risk registers to identify risks 

and controls; 
§ Our own cumulative knowledge and experience of the City Council’s 

governance and control environment; 
§ Internal Audit Universe and  Risk Assessment using cumulative audit 

knowledge and experience including previous audits, materiality, 
sensitivity, change; 

§ Information and requests from extensive consultation meetings with 
management. 

  
4.2 There are considered to be sufficient resources available to achieve the 

2009/10 Annual Audit Plan subject to there being no significant unplanned 
audit work or staff vacancies.  To be better prepared in order to mitigate the 
risk of staff vacancies, we have now arranged to procure additional external 
resources under a framework contract. 

 
5. FINANCIAL & OTHER IMPLICATIONS: 
 
5.1 Financial Implications: 
 
5.2 As noted in the strategy, the Head of Audit & Business Risk must formally report to 

the Director of Finance & resources (Section 151) and the Audit Committee if 
insufficient resources are available to meet the team’s responsibilities and achieve 
its objectives.  Audit & Business Risk were exempted from the 2009/10 savings 
target, allowing sufficient resources to be built into the 2009/10 budget to afford an 
adequate number of audit days in the year.   

 
The work of internal audit reduced the council’s fees to our external auditors, 
particularly under the ‘managed audit’ arrangements.  Additionally, changes to 
thresholds that determine the extent of audit of grant claims has realised real 
savings, with many grants now being audited by the Audit & Business Risk 
team rather than by our external auditors. 

 
Delivering the annual audit plan contributes towards the Chief Finance Officer 
meeting their Section 151 responsibilities (make arrangements for the proper 
administration of the Local Authorities financial affairs) by helping to achieve 
an effective control environment. 

 
Finance Officer Consulted: Stuart Taylor              Date: 7 May 2009                                                       

18



   

 

 
5.2 Legal Implications: 
 

The relevant statutory provisions are referred to in paragraphs 3.2 above. 
 
 Laywer Consulted: Oliver Dixon    Date: 7 May 2009 
 
5.3 Equalities Implications: 
 

When carrying out audit work, any equality issues identified are reported to the 
appropriate level of management.  The Internal Audit Strategy and Annual Audit 
Plan recognises the council’s priorities in respect to Equality and Diversity and how 
Internal Audit will meet them. 

 
5.4 Sustainability Implications: 
 

When carrying out audit work, any sustainability issues identified are reported to the 
appropriate level of management.   

 

5.5 Crime & Disorder Implications:  

 

When carrying out audit work, any crime and disorder issues identified are reported 
to the appropriate level of management.   

 

5.6 Risk and Opportunity Management Implications:  

 

The preparation of the Internal Audit Strategy and annual Audit Plan has taken into 
account the adequacy, outcomes of the council’s risk management and other 
assurance processes. The work of Internal Audit assists the council in improving 
controls to mitigate risks.The Annual Audit Plan will be flexible to take account of 
emerging risks and priorities of the council. 

 

5.7 Corporate / Citywide Implications: 

 

Robust corporate governance arrangements are essential to the sound 
management of the City Council and the achievement of its objectives as set out in 
the Corporate Plan. 

 

19



   

 

 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION 

 

Appendices: 
 
1.  Internal Audit Strategy and Annual Audit Plan 2009/10 
 
 
Background Documents: 
 

1. Accounts & Audit Regulations 2003 (Amended 2006) 

 
2. CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government 2006 
 
3. Risk and Opportunity Strategy 2008 
 
4. Corporate Risk Register 2008 

 

 
    

20



Appendix A 

  
 

                          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IInntteerrnnaall  AAuuddiitt  SSttrraatteeggyy  aanndd  
AAnnnnuuaall  PPllaann  22000099--1100

21



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This page in intentionally left blank

22



                                                                                                                      Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 2009-10 

March 2009                                                                   Page  1                                                  Audit & Business Risk                           

                                            

Contents                                                                                              Page 

 
Introduction 
 

2 

Key Core Deliverables 2009/10 
 

3 

The Role and Purpose of Internal Audit in the City Council 
 

3 

Internal Audit Protocol 
 

4 

Key Risk and Priority Areas for 2009/10 
 Corporate Governance Arrangements 
 Key Financial Systems 
 Value for Money Arrangements 
 Risk Management 
 ICT & E-Government 
 Partnerships 
 Contracts, Procurement and Major Projects 
 Organisational Change 
 CPA Use of Resources 
 Counter Fraud 
 Audit Committee 

 

5 

Relationships with other Assurance Providers 
 

7 

Our Performance Management 
 

7 

Internal Audit Resources for 2009/10 
 

8 

Developing the Annual Internal Audit Plan 
 

9 

Annual Internal Audit Plan 2009/10 10 
 

                 
  Appendices  

A Internal Audit Plan 2009/10 
 Corporate Governance Arrangements 
 Cross Cutting and Corporate Projects 
 Key Financial Systems 
 Procurement and Contract Management 
 ICT and E-Government 
 Service Specific 
 Counter Fraud Programme 
 Corporate Support 
 Grants & National Performance Indicators 
 Other Direct Audit Activity 

 

12 

B Risk categories used in Audit Risk Assessment 
 

33 

C Internal Audit Charter 35 

23



                                                                                                                      Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 2009-10 

March 2009                                                                   Page  2                                                  Audit & Business Risk                           

 

Introduction 

1. This document sets out the City Council’s Internal Audit Strategy and Annual Plan for 
2009/10. 

 
2. The City Council’s internal audit function is provided by Audit & Business Risk, part of 

the Finance & Resources Directorate, together with our ‘internal audit partner’ Deloitte.  
The terms of reference are included in the Audit Charter, at Appendix C. 

 
3. Internal Audit principally contributes to the City Council’s Corporate Priority, better use 

of public money and the Finance & Resources Directorate’s Objectives, to drive better value 
for money by transforming our services and supporting other services in their transformation and 
to ensure effective governance and management of resources within the Council. 

 
4. Our strategic vision is to continually add value at corporate, departmental and service 

level by working with management to review and improve internal control, risk 
management, corporate governance and the achievement of value for money.   Our 
service is customer focussed and our approach and performance standards support this. 

 
5. The purpose of the Internal Audit Strategy and Plan is to: 
 

 Provide independent and objective overall assurance to Members, TMT and other 
senior managers on the effectiveness of the City Council’s control environment 

 Identify the key risks facing the City Council to achieving its objectives and 
determine the corresponding level of audit resources 

 Add value and support senior management in providing effective control and 
identifying opportunities for improving value for money 

 Support the Director of Finance & Resources in fulfilling obligations as the City 
Council’s nominated Section 151 Officer 

 Deliver an internal audit service that meets the requirements of the Accounts & 
Audit Regulations. 

 Optimise the use of audit resources available 
 
6. The Internal Audit Strategy and Plan is aimed primarily at providing ongoing and annual 

assurance to the City Council to provide confidence to its stakeholders. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

24



                                                                                                                      Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 2009-10 

March 2009                                                                   Page  3                                                  Audit & Business Risk                           

 
 

Key Core Deliverables for 2009/10
 
 To provide ongoing assurance to management on the integrity, effectiveness and operation 

of the City Council’s internal control system. 
 
 Delivery of the Annual Audit Plan  
 
 To continue to meet the requirements of the ‘managed audit’ arrangements with the City 

Council’s external auditors to further develop our partnership working relationships. 
 
 To further embed integration of internal audit work with governance and managing risk to 

produce a clearly coordinated risk-based approach to the audit of business/operational 
systems across the City Council. 

 
 To deliver the statutory requirements of the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2006. 
 
 To continue to develop and have a lead in the City Council’s corporate governance 

arrangements including review and production of the ‘Annual Governance Statement’ to 
provide assurance on the City Council’s governance arrangements and any areas for 
improvement. 

 
 To continue to be proactive in counter fraud including delivery of comprehensive fraud 

awareness training programme to assist managers and staff in the prevention and detecting 
of fraud and irregularities. 

 
 To continue to develop our role and work closely with the Audit Committee. 
 
 To significantly contribute to the City Councils Value for Money and Business 

Transformation agenda. In particular by ensuring our audit wok is focussed on effective 
change and delivery of service improvements. 

 
 

The Role and Purpose of Internal Audit in the City Council 
 
7. The statutory basis for internal audit in local government in provided in the Accounts and 

Audit Regulations 2006, which states that a local authority shall maintain an adequate and 
effective system of internal audit of its accounting records and of its system of internal control in 
accordance with proper practice.  The City Council has recognised this statutory 
requirement in its financial regulations. 

 
 
8. In addition to the above, the Director of Finance & Resources has a statutory duty under 

Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972, to establish a clear framework for the 
proper administration of the local authority’s affairs.  To perform that duty the Section 
151 Officer relies on amongst other things, the work of Audit & Business Risk Services in 
reviewing systems of internal control, financial management and other assurance 
processes. 

 

25



                                                                                                                      Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 2009-10 

March 2009                                                                   Page  4                                                  Audit & Business Risk                           

 
9. The standards for ‘proper practice’ in relation to internal audit are laid down in CIPFA’s 

Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government (Updated in 2006).   We 
continually ensure compliance with these professional standards and reflected in our 
terms of reference contained in our Audit Charter, shown at Appendix C. 

 
10. The standard and quality of internal audit is principally scrutinised in four ways: 
 

 An  annual review of the effectiveness of internal audit required by the Accounts & 
Audit Regulations 2006, reported to the Audit Committee 

 The external auditor seeks to place reliance upon the quality and standard of work our 
work through principally the ‘managed audit’ process and reports this to the Council in 
the annual audit and inspection letter 

 The external auditor carries out a more detailed triennial review (last one 2008/09) 
 The Use of Resources module of the Comprehensive Performance Assessment 

measures the effectiveness and performance of internal audit against specified criteria 
 
 

Protocol for Audit Reviews 
 
11. For each audit review carried out, the responsible Director (audit Owner) and/or the 

Service Head will be involved in the scoping to ensure appropriately focussed on key 
perceived risks, providing assurance and maximising added value.    A terms of reference 
will be produced for each audit review and agreed to ensure the scope, objectives and 
approach are understood and agreed. 

 
12. Draft internal audit reports will be issued for discussion with the appropriate levels of 

management and normally set-out in the terms of reference. We would not normally 
issue draft reports to Directors unless specifically requested or, if we consider the need 
to communicate issues and concerns arising from reviews at this stage. 

 
13. Final internal audit reports will be issued after the agreement of draft reports and contain 

completed management actions plans that will identify those responsible for 
implementation and timescales.  The final reports will always be issued to the Director 
designated as the Audit Owner and responsible for the area reviewed. 

 
14. Agreed actions or recommendations will be followed-up, depending on their priority but  

this will usually be between three to six months from the issue of the final.  A report will 
be completed and distributed in line with the final report. 

 
 

Key Risk and Priority Areas for 2009/10
 
15. Having regard to the current risk profile of the City Council, the following areas have 

been identified as key priority areas of our work and attention for 2009/10: 
 
 
 
 
 

26



                                                                                                                      Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 2009-10 

March 2009                                                                   Page  5                                                  Audit & Business Risk                           

 
Corporate Governance Arrangements 

 
16. The City Council’s corporate governance framework covers all aspects of its business, 

including risk management, internal control and ethical standards.  We have a key role to 
play in reviewing the framework and providing assurance that it operates effectively.  This 
forms the basis of Annual Governance Statement approved by Members and signed by the 
Leader and Chief Executive. 

 
Key Financial Systems 

 
17. The effectiveness of controls and management of risks within key financial systems 

remains a core part of our audit work.  This work is important in providing annual 
assurance to the City Council and to meet the requirements of the Audit Commission 
under the ‘managed audit’ arrangements and carried out in accordance with International 
Standard of Auditing (ISA) 315. 

 
18. Our work will include the continued review of CIVICA Financials, departmental material 

financial systems and the provision of professional advice and support for existing and 
future developments. 

 
Business Transformation and Value for Money  

 
19. With the renewed emphasis on demonstrating and achieving value for money, it is 

integrated into our risk based audit approach.  We will also continue to aim to provide 
and promote value for money across the City Council and partnerships.   

 
20. Our work will support the City Council’s Business Transformation Agenda by either 

direct involvement in reviews, providing assurance over projects or by integrating into 
specific audit reviews using appropriate methodologies. 

 
21.  With the continued emphasis and importance on the achievement of value for money we 

will further develop our approach to identify opportunities for improvement.    
 

Risk Management 
 
22. We have a key role to promote effective risk management across the City Council and to 

assess compliance with good risk management practices and the adequacy of controls put 
in place by management to mitigate risks in their service areas. 

 
ICT & E-Government 

 
23. Due to this high risk to the City Council, we will review the management and controls for 

existing and future development of systems and services.   The planned ICT reviews have 
been based on a comprehensive ICT risk register compiled in 2007/08.  Also data security 
will be a key part of our work for the forthcoming year due to issues emerging and 
consequential risk, across the public sector and new standards. 

 
 
 
 

27



                                                                                                                      Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 2009-10 

March 2009                                                                   Page  6                                                  Audit & Business Risk                           

 
Partnerships 

 
24. The City Council is increasingly operating and delivering services jointly through 

partnerships.  Partnership governance is a key part of the Audit Commission’s 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment and will be more so for the future 
Comprehensive Area Assessment.   We will continue to build on our previous work and 
deliver this through joint working where appropriate. 

 
Contracts, Procurement and Major Projects 

 
25. Changing approaches to procurement and contract management are a key part of 

delivering improved services.   This also brings additional inherent risks that need to be 
managed.   Major projects also represent a high risk to the City Council in terms 
corporate importance and resources.  Our audit work will continue to focus on 
embedding risk management and controls.   

 
CAA Use of Resources 

 
26. The City Council received a score of 3 out of a possible 4 for the Use of Resources for 

the previous CPA.  This had a significant impact on the overall score for the City Council 
being awarded excellent status.   Our work will focus on assisting with improvement 
through review, learning from best practice and making practical recommendations for 
improvement. 

 
Counter Fraud  

 
27. We have a lead responsibility for corporate counter fraud and will continue to review and 

develop the robustness of the City Council’s arrangements.  We will continue to work 
closely, internally with other services involved in investigating fraud and externally with 
other anti-fraud agencies, Police and the Audit Commission. 

 
28. During 2009-10 we will continue to focus on proactive counter fraud work.  We will 

target a number of service areas either specifically for counter fraud work or as part of 
audit reviews. 

 
Audit Committee 

 
29. We will work closely with Audit Committee Members in developing its role not just in 

relation to best practice but also as part of effective corporate governance of the City 
Council. 

 

Relationships with other Assurance Providers 
 
30. In developing the Annual Internal Audit Plan, consideration has been given to the 

assurance work carried out by others such external audit and inspectors and those 
involved in performance, transformational change and value for money, to avoid 
duplication and maximise the use of limited resources available. 

 
 

28



                                                                                                                      Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 2009-10 

March 2009                                                                   Page  7                                                  Audit & Business Risk                           

 
31. The City Council benefits from an external audit fee that includes a significant reduction 

on the normal Audit Commission basic fee for a Council with Brighton & Hove’s level of 
expenditure and risk profile.  The lower fee arises from the external auditor’s opinion on 
the quality of internal audit as well as placing reliance on the work undertaken by internal 
audit under ‘managed audit ‘arrangements. 

 
32. Internal audit and external audit will continue to work closely together to ensure the City 

Council’s total audit resource is effectively managed and targeted.  However the 
prescribed requirements of the International Standards on Auditing have had a 
detrimental impact on the reliance that can be placed on the systems work of internal 
audit.  External audit are now required to undertake a certain level of systems work, 
irrespective of the level of reliance. 

 
33. We will continue working closely with internal auditors of the City Council’s partner 

organisations under agreed protocols.  For example undertaking joint reviews to use the 
audit skills and experience of both partner organisations. 

 

Our Performance Management 
 
34. To achieve planned coverage, deliver a high standard of customer care and demonstrate 

effectiveness of the service, we have well established performance targets based on best 
professional practice and easily comparable with other organisations. 

 
35. Performance indicators and targets are shown at Appendix D for five aspects of our 

service: 
 

 Cost and quality of input 
 Productivity and process efficiency 
 Quality of output 
 Compliance with professional standards 
 Outcomes and degree of influence 

 

Internal Audit Resources 2009/10 
 
36. The Internal Audit Plan is resourced by calculating the number of productive days 

available within the Internal Audit Team.  The Internal Audit Team’s establishment is 11.5 
FTEs comprising the Head of Audit and Business Risk (proportion), Principal Audit 
Manager, Principal Auditors and Auditors.  The projected productive internal audit days 
available for 2009/10 is 2,050 made up of 1,900 in-house and 100 ICT audit days 
outsourced from our ‘external partner’ Deloitte Public Sector Ltd. 

 
37. The number of productive audit days are inevitably limited but out work is prioritised on 

the basis of risk to be able to provide overall assurance and add value. 
 
38. Based on past experience and good practice, the Annual Internal Audit Plan includes a 

small contingency for unplanned work requirements to ensure we are able to respond to 
changing needs and demands. 

 
 

29



                                                                                                                      Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 2009-10 

March 2009                                                                   Page  8                                                  Audit & Business Risk                           

 
39. The effectiveness of internal audit and added value to the City Council is highly 

dependent on the quality of staff.  We are committed to the personal development pf our 
staff to ensure they possess the necessary up to date skills, knowledge and experience.  A 
high percentage of our staff are professionally qualified and undertake continued 
professional development. 

 
 

Developing the Annual Internal Audit Plan 2009/10 
 
40. The methodology used for developing the Annual Internal Audit Plan focuses upon the 

quantification of the risks associated with achieving corporate and departmental 
objectives. 

 
41. The Annual Internal Audit Plan is aligned to the City Council’s business planning 

framework to ensure coverage of its main business processes, projects, assets, and 
performance.  Also compliance issues significant to the City Council’s strategic direction,  
risk environment, objectives and business goals. 

 
42. The process uses three sources of risk identification to arrive at an Annual Internal Audit 

Plan. 
 
43. Firstly, a  comprehensive internal audit risk assessment using five weighted categories of 

risk, a full explanations of the measures given shown at Appendix B: 
 

 Control risk; 
 Corporate importance including criticality to the achievement of priorities, 

legislative and regulatory impact; 
 Corporate materiality; 
 Value for Money and Service Delivery; and 
 Corporate sensitivity and impact on the City Council’s reputation. 

 
44. These categories are used to determine a risk rating of high, medium or low to reflect the 

inherent risk or vulnerability.  Due to limited audit resources, our planned audit is 
focussed on areas of high and medium risk. 

 
45. Secondly, internal audit planning is linked to the City Council’s risk management process 

and we use the corporate and directorate risk registers as far as possible.    Audits are 
where possible, cross referenced to corporate risks on the Annual Internal Audit Plan. 

 
46. Thirdly information is gathered through regular consultation meetings with key managers 

including TMT Members, Assistant Directors and Service Heads, and the City Council’s 
partners.  The information includes areas of concern and where internal audit review 
would be beneficial.  Specific management requests for audit reviews are considered and 
included as appropriate.  We also discuss the requirements with external audit to ensure 
reliance can be placed on the internal audit work. 

 
 
 
 

30



                                                                                                                      Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 2009-10 

March 2009                                                                   Page  9                                                  Audit & Business Risk                           

 
47. A number of planned audits, particularly those details in Key Financial Systems will be 

carried out as part of Internal Audit’s statutory requirements to provide assurance to the 
Director of Finance & Resources (Section 151 Officer) on the effectiveness of internal 
controls operating in the council. 

 
48. Audit work covering governance will contribute towards the Head of Audit & Business 

Risk’s overall assurance on corporate governance which forms part of the Annual 
Governance Statement.   

 
49. The Annual Internal Audit Plan is indicative and it is inevitable that changes will be made 

during the year as the risk profile of the City Council changes.  This will be achieved 
through ongoing review and amendment, in consultation with the relevant audit owners 
and service managers to reflect the needs of the City Council and to add maximise value.   

 
50. The Audit Committee will be informed of significant changes as part of progress reports 

against the plan, to each meeting. 
 
 

Annual Internal Audit Plan 2009/10
 
51. Appendix A shows the Annual Internal Audit Plan and provides a brief summary of each 

review under thematic areas.  The plan also shows the significance of each review in 
terms of risk (high, medium and low) and where relevant, cross referenced to the City 
Council’s corporate risks. The allocation of the 2,000 audit days  is summarised in table 2 
below together with the number of specific audit reviews 

 
52. The Counter Fraud Programme is included in the plan and includes both pro-active and 

reactive audit work.  The number of direct days has been increased for 2009/10 in 
response to the growing risk of fraud due principally to a period of recession. 

 
53. A limited time contingency has been provided for unplanned work and extending time for 

planned reviews.  This will in particular be used to respond to emerging issues, risks and 
to have the capacity to respond to requests from senior managers.  
 
Table 2 – Summary of Internal Audit Annual Internal Audit Plan 2009/10 
 

Thematic Area Number of 
Specific Reviews 

Audit Days 

Corporate Governance Arrangements 10 137 
Council Wide and Corporate Projects 15 213 
Key Financial Systems 11 181 
Procurement & Contract Management 13 162 
ICT & E-Government 21 274 
Service Specific 31 381 
Counter Fraud Programme 3 279 
Corporate Support - 100 
Grants & National Performance Indicators - 71 
Other Direct Audit Activity - 252 
Totals 104 2050 

31



                                                                                                                      Internal Audit Strategy and Plan 2009-10 

March 2009                                                                   Page  10                                                 Audit & Business Risk                          

 
54. For each internal audit review, an audit risk ranking (High, Medium or Low) is provided 

together where applicable with the latest corporate risks.   The City Council’s corporate 
risks are shown in full in table 3 below: 

 
Table 3 - Corporate Risks (Source: Corporate Risk Register 2008/09) 

 
Risk No. Risk Summary 

CR1 Council Housing Stock Condition 
CR2 Financial Outlook for the Council 
CR3 Long Term Funding for Educational Premises 
CR6 Civil Resilience 
CR14 Equal Pay 
CR5 Brighton Centre 
CR7 Business Continuity Capacity 
CR9 Major Projects 
CR10 Sustainable Funding for Improving Social Issues 
CR11 A Deserved Reputation for Excellence and a Staff Culture to Deliver  
CR13 Waste Reduction and Disposal 
CR15 Improving Contract Management and Compliance 
CR17 Investing in the City’s Sustainable Future 

 
55. The Annual Audit Plan includes the quarter when the audit review is planned to be 

undertaken.  Wherever possible this has been agreed with management during the 
planning process.   There is however flexibility to respond for example to pressures on 
services audited and audit resource availability. 

 
56. In addition to the Audit Committee receiving regular progress reports against the plan, 

Directors and Assistant Directors will be provided with progress reports as necessary 
through the year summarising the outcome of reviews and other audit work for the 
quarter and planned for the quarter ahead.   The Head of Audit & Business Risk and/or 
Audit Manager will also attend their Directorate Management Team (DMT) meetings as 
required, to discuss audit coverage and outcomes. 

32



  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  
In

te
rn

al
 A

u
d

it
 S

tr
at

eg
y
 a

n
d

 A
n

n
u

al
 P

la
n

 2
0

0
8

-0
9

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

9
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

P
ag

e 
 1

1
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
A

u
d

it
 &

 B
u

si
n

es
s 

R
is

k
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
 

    

A
p

p
e
n

d
ix

 A
 

     

 
 A

N
N

U
A

L
 I

N
T

E
R

N
A

L
  

A
U

D
IT

 P
L

A
N

 2
0
0
9
/1

0
 

 

33



  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

In
te

rn
al

 A
u
d

it
 S

tr
at

eg
y

 &
 A

n
n

u
al

  
P

la
n
 2

0
0
9

-2
0

1
0

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

8
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 n

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
 P

ag
e 

 1
2

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 A
u

d
it

 &
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
R

is
k

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 A

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 

A
u

d
it

 D
e
ta

il
s 

R
e
f.

 
A

u
d

it
 

R
is

k
 

R
a
ti

n
g
 

C
o

rp
. 

R
is

k
/s

 
A

u
d

it
 

D
a
y
s 

B
ro

a
d

 S
c
o

p
e
 

A
u

d
it

 O
w

n
e
r 

T
im

in
g
 

A
0
5
9
 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 C
o

n
ti

n
u

it
y
 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
6
 

5
 

Fo
llo

w
-u

p
 

to
 

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 

re
vi

ew
 

o
n
 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 

in
 

p
la

ce
 

fo
r 

co
n
ti
n
u
it
y 

o
f 

se
rv

ic
es

 
af

te
r 

an
 

in
ci

d
en

t 
af

fe
ct

in
g 

b
u
si

n
es

s 
cr

it
ic

al
 a

re
as

 o
f 

th
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l’s
 

o
p
er

at
io

n
s.

 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

en
t 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

A
2
4
8
 

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
6
 

5
 

Fo
llo

w
-u

p
 

to
 

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 

re
vi

ew
 

o
n
 

em
er

ge
n
cy

 
p
la

n
n
in

g 
 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
ce

 b
y 

th
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

en
t 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

A
2
5
4
 

C
A

A
 U

se
 o

f 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
s 

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

- 
1
2
 

Fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
p
u
b
lis

h
ed

 C
P
A

 U
se

 o
f 

R
es

o
u
rc

es
 S

co
re

 o
f 

3
, 

th
is

 r
ev

ie
w

 w
ill

 a
ss

is
t 

w
it
h
 i

d
en

ti
fy

in
g 

 a
n
d
 w

h
er

e 
ap

p
lic

ab
le

 
im

p
le

m
en

ti
n
g 

ac
ti
o
n
s,

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 f

o
r 

m
ai

n
ta

in
in

g 
at

 a
 m

in
im

u
m

  
th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
le

ve
l 
u
n
d
er

 C
A

A
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
t.
  
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
-

2
 

A
3
0
4
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

C
R

2
 

2
0
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

se
cu

ri
ty

 o
ve

r 
h
o
w

 t
h
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
h
an

d
le

s 
it
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n
 a

n
d
 d

at
a 

re
te

n
ti
o
n
 f

o
r 

n
o
n
 

co
m

p
u
te

r 
h
el

d
 i
n
fo

rm
at

io
n
. 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
-

4
 

A
0
0
2
 

A
n

n
u

a
l 
 G

o
v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 S

ta
te

m
e
n

t 
  

H
ig

h
 

A
ll 

1
7
 

A
n
n
u
al

 r
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

o
ve

ra
ll 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 t

o
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
ad

eq
u
ac

y 
ac

ro
ss

 
th

e 
C

o
u
n
ci

l. 
 

T
o
 

p
ro

d
u
ce

 
A

n
n
u
al

 
G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

St
at

em
en

t 
w

it
h
 a

ct
io

n
 p

la
n
. 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

St
ra

te
gy

 
&

 G
o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

Q
u
ar

te
rs

 1
 

- 
4
 

A
1
8
9
 

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e
 o

f 
P

a
rt

n
e
rs

h
ip

s 
  

H
ig

h
 

C
R

2
 

1
8
 

Fo
llo

w
-u

p
 o

f 
p
re

vi
o
u
s 

ye
ar

 a
u
d
it
 a

n
d
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

as
su

ra
n
ce

 o
n
 

th
e 

ad
eq

u
ac

y 
o
f 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 t
h
ro

u
gh

 e
x
am

in
in

g 
a 

sa
m

p
le

 
o
f 

m
aj

o
r/

si
gn

ifi
ca

n
t 

p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s.
 

 
 

T
h
is

 
ar

e 
h
as

 
b
ec

o
m

e 
an

 i
n
cr

ea
si

n
g 

p
ri

o
ri

ty
 u

n
d
er

 C
P
A

 a
n
d
 w

ill
 c

o
n
ti
n
u
e 

u
n
d
er

 C
A

A
. 
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

St
ra

te
gy

 
an

d
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

A
2
1
5
 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 P
la

n
n

in
g
 

  

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
1
1
 

1
0
 

Fo
llo

w
-u

p
 

to
 

th
e 

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 

re
vi

ew
 

o
n
 

th
e 

em
b
ed

d
in

g 
an

d
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 
B

u
si

n
es

s 
P
la

n
n
in

g 
ac

ro
ss

 t
h
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l. 
     

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

St
ra

te
gy

 
an

d
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

34



  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

In
te

rn
al

 A
u
d

it
 S

tr
at

eg
y

 &
 A

n
n

u
al

  
P

la
n
 2

0
0
9

-2
0

1
0

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

8
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 n

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
 P

ag
e 

 1
3

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 A
u

d
it

 &
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
R

is
k

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

A
u

d
it

 D
e
ta

il
s 

R
e
f.

 
A

u
d

it
 

R
is

k
 

R
a
ti

n
g
 

C
o

rp
. 

R
is

k
/s

 
A

u
d

it
 

D
a
y
s 

B
ro

a
d

 S
c
o

p
e
 

A
u

d
it

 O
w

n
e
r 

T
im

in
g
 

 
A

0
9
6
 

R
is

k
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
A

ll 
1
5
 

T
h
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l’s
 
ri

sk
 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ar

ra
n
ge

m
en

ts
 
ar

e 
an

 
im

p
o
rt

an
t 

p
ar

t 
o
f 

it
s 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
. 
 

T
h
is

 a
u
d
it
 w

ill
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

so
u
n
d
n
es

s 
o
f 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 i
n
 p

la
ce

 
fo

r 
id

en
ti
fy

in
g,

 a
ss

es
si

n
g 

an
d
 m

an
ag

in
g 

ke
y 

ri
sk

s 
to

 t
h
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
at

 s
tr

at
eg

ic
, 
d
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 a
n
d
 s

er
vi

ce
 l
ev

el
. 
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

 3
 

A
0
2
1
 

D
a
ta

 Q
u

a
li
ty

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

C
R

1
1
 

1
5
 

 
R

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
an

d
 e

m
b
ed

d
in

g 
o
f 

th
e 

D
at

a 
Q

u
al

it
y 

P
o
lic

y,
 
p
ro

ce
ss

es
 
an

d
 
co

n
tr

o
ls

 
o
p
er

at
in

g.
 
 
T

h
e 

re
vi

ew
 
w

ill
 

al
so

 b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

u
n
d
er

 ‘
M

an
ag

ed
 A

u
d
it
’ 
ar

ra
n
ge

m
en

ts
 w

it
h
 

th
e 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
. 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

St
ra

te
gy

 
&

 G
o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

2
 

A
1
8
1
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 H
e
a
lt

h
 &

 S
a
fe

ty
 

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

C
R

1
8
 

1
2
 

T
h
is

 
fu

n
ct

io
n
 
is

 
h
ig

h
 
p
ro

fil
e 

an
d
 
o
f 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 
im

p
o
rt

an
ce

. 
 

T
h
e 

re
vi

ew
 w

ill
 i

n
cl

u
d
e 

o
ve

ra
ll 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
ce

 
w

it
h
 h

ea
lt
h
 a

n
d
 s

af
et

y 
re

q
u
ir

em
en

ts
. 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

St
ra

te
gy

 
an

d
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

4
 

A
2
5
7
 

D
e
c
la

ra
ti

o
n

s 
o

f 
In

te
re

st
, 
G

if
ts

 &
 

H
o

sp
it

a
li
ty

 

 

M
ed

iu
m

 
- 

8
 

T
o
 e

n
su

re
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

 a
re

 r
o
b
u
st

 i
n
cl

u
d
in

g 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ap
p
ro

va
l 

an
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g 

o
f 
re

gi
st

er
in

g 
d
ec

la
ra

ti
o
n
s 

o
f 
in

te
re

st
, 
gi

ft
s 

an
d
 h

o
sp

it
al

it
y.

  
 T

h
e 

re
vi

ew
 w

ill
 i
n
cl

u
d
e 

b
o
th

 o
ff
ic

er
s 

an
d
 

m
em

b
er

s.
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

St
ra

te
gy

 
an

d
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

 
 

 
 

1
3
7
 

 
 

 

 

35



  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

In
te

rn
al

 A
u
d

it
 S

tr
at

eg
y

 &
 A

n
n

u
al

  
P

la
n
 2

0
0
9

-2
0

1
0

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

8
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 n

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
 P

ag
e 

 1
4

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 A
u

d
it

 &
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
R

is
k

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

 C
o

u
n

c
il
 W

id
e
 a

n
d

 C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 P
ro

je
c
ts

 
A

u
d

it
 D

e
ta

il
s 

R
e
f.

 
A

u
d

it
 

R
is

k
 

R
a
ti

n
g
 

C
o

rp
. 

R
is

k
/s

 
A

u
d

it
 

D
a
y
s 

B
ro

a
d

 S
c
o

p
e
 

A
u

d
it

 O
w

n
e
r 

T
im

in
g
 

A
0
0
4
 

T
ra

n
sp

o
rt

 F
le

e
t 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
- 

1
2
 

T
h
is

 r
ev

ie
w

 w
ill

 e
x
am

in
e 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

co
n
tr

o
l 

o
f 

th
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l’s
 

tr
an

sp
o
rt

. 
It

 
w

ill
 

fu
rt

h
er

 
co

m
p
le

m
en

t 
th

e 
co

rp
o
ra

te
 

tr
an

sp
o
rt

 
fle

et
 

re
vi

ew
 

fo
r 

im
p
ro

vi
n
g 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

o
n
ey

. 
 T

h
e 

re
vi

ew
 w

ill
 u

ti
lis

e 
an

 a
u
d
it
 t

o
o
lk

it
 f

o
r 

tr
an

sp
o
rt

 
fle

et
 r

ev
ie

w
. 
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

en
t 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

A
1
4
9
 

In
su

ra
n

c
e
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
- 

1
0
 

T
o
 

re
vi

ew
 

th
e 

ad
eq

u
ac

y 
o
f 

th
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l’s
 

in
su

ra
n
ce

 
ar

ra
n
ge

m
en

ts
, 
in

 p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

ar
o
u
n
d
 t

h
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

o
f 
cl

ai
m

s.
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

 1
 

A
3
0
5
 

P
re

m
is

e
s 

S
e
c
u

ri
ty

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

C
R

2
 

1
2
 

A
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
p
re

m
is

es
 s

ec
u
ri

ty
 f

o
r 

n
u
m

b
er

 o
f 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
es

ta
b
lis

h
m

en
ts

. 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

A
3
0
6
 

V
a
lu

e
 

fo
r 

M
o

n
e
y
 

P
h

a
se

 
1
 

B
e
n

e
fi

ts
 R

e
a
li
sa

ti
o

n
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
2
 

1
2
 

T
o
 
ex

am
in

e 
th

e 
o
u
tc

o
m

es
 
fr

o
m

 
V

FM
 
P
h
as

e 
1
 
re

vi
ew

s 
to

 
en

su
re

 b
en

ef
it
s 

h
av

e 
b
ee

n
 r

ea
lis

ed
 o

r 
in

 t
h
e 

p
ro

gr
es

s 
w

it
h
 

ap
p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ac
ti
o
n
 m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g.

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 

R
es

o
u
rc

es
 

an
d
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

St
ra

te
gy

 
&

 G
o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

Q
u
ar

te
rs

 1
 

- 
4
 

A
3
0
7
 

C
u

st
o

m
e
r 

A
c
c
e
ss

 
P

ro
je

c
t 

(V
a
lu

e
 f

o
r 

M
o

n
e
y
 P

h
a
se

 I
I)

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

C
R

1
1
 

1
0
 

T
o
 

re
vi

ew
 

th
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ar

ra
n
ge

m
en

ts
 

an
d
 

d
el

iv
er

ab
le

 
o
u
tc

o
m

es
. 

 
T

o
 

fu
rt

h
er

 
p
ro

vi
d
e 

su
p
p
o
rt

 
as

 
re

q
u
ir

ed
. 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
rs

 1
 

-3
 

A
2
3
2
 

A
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

 
 

U
ti

li
sa

ti
o

n
 

a
n

d
 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 
(V

a
lu

e
 
fo

r 
M

o
n

e
y
 

P
h

a
se

 I
I)

 
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
 

C
R

2
 

1
5
 

Fo
llo

w
-u

p
 t

o
 t

h
e 

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

o
 e

va
lu

at
e 

th
e 

co
n
tr

o
l 
an

d
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
u
se

 o
f 

o
ff
ic

e 
ac

co
m

m
o
d
at

io
n
. 

 T
h
e 

re
vi

ew
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 

su
p
p
o
rt

 t
h
e 

V
FM

 P
h
as

e 
II
 R

ev
ie

w
, 

B
et

te
r 

A
cc

es
s 

an
d
 B

et
te

r 
Se

rv
ic

e 
A

cc
o
m

m
o
d
at

io
n
/F

le
x
ib

le
 W

o
rk

in
g 

St
re

am
. 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

 1
 

- 
2
 

A
2
2
5
 

C
a
sh

 H
a
n

d
li
n

g
 

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

C
R

2
 

1
2
 

T
h
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
h
as

 a
 n

u
m

b
er

 o
f 

ar
ea

s 
w

h
ic

h
 r

ec
ei

ve
 c

as
h
 

in
co

m
e.

 
 

 
T

h
is

 
re

vi
ew

 
w

ill
 

ex
am

in
e 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 o
ve

r 
ca

sh
 h

an
d
lin

g.
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
rs

 2
 

A
1
5
6
 

V
A

T
 A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

  

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
2
 

1
0
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 o
ve

r 
V

A
T

 a
cr

o
ss

 t
h
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
in

 
p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

p
ro

ce
d
u
re

s,
 

m
ee

ti
n
g 

re
le

va
n
t 

le
gi

sl
at

io
n
 a

n
d
 m

ax
im

is
in

g 
fin

an
ci

al
 b

en
ef

it
s 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

36



  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

In
te

rn
al

 A
u
d

it
 S

tr
at

eg
y

 &
 A

n
n

u
al

  
P

la
n
 2

0
0
9

-2
0

1
0

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

8
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 n

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
 P

ag
e 

 1
5

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 A
u

d
it

 &
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
R

is
k

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

A
u

d
it

 D
e
ta

il
s 

R
e
f.

 
A

u
d

it
 

R
is

k
 

R
a
ti

n
g
 

C
o

rp
. 

R
is

k
/s

 
A

u
d

it
 

D
a
y
s 

B
ro

a
d

 S
c
o

p
e
 

A
u

d
it

 O
w

n
e
r 

T
im

in
g
 

A
3
0
8
 

S
u

st
a
in

a
b

il
it

y
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
1
7
 

 
1
5
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l’s
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 f
o
r 

su
st

ai
n
ab

ili
ty

 
an

d
 i
m

p
ro

ve
m

en
t.
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

St
ra

te
gy

 
&

 G
o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

 2
 

A
0
0
3
 

A
tt

e
n

d
a
n

c
e
/A

b
se

n
c
e
  

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
H

ig
h
 

C
R

1
1
 

1
5
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

b
se

n
ce

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

in
 p

ar
ti
cu

la
r 

si
ck

n
es

s 
an

d
 t

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
d
es

ig
n
 o

f 
p
o
lic

ie
s 

an
d
 g

u
id

an
ce

. 
 F

u
rt

h
er

 t
o
 m

ak
e 

co
m

p
ar

is
o
n
 

w
it
h
 

b
es

t 
p
ra

ct
ic

e 
o
f 

o
th

er
 

p
u
b
lic

 
se

ct
o
r 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
s 

an
d
 d

et
re

m
in

e 
m

ea
su

re
s 

th
at

 c
an

 b
e 

ta
ke

n
 t

o
 

im
p
ro

ve
. 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

St
ra

te
gy

 
an

d
 G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

A
1
6
8
 

P
re

 
E

m
p

lo
y
m

e
n

t 
C

h
e
c
k
s 

fo
r 

S
ta

ff
 R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
1
1
 

1
0
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
an

d
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
ce

 w
it
h
 p

ro
ce

d
u
re

s 
in

 p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

o
ve

r 
C

ri
m

in
al

 R
ec

o
rd

s 
B

u
re

au
 (

C
R

B
) 

ch
ec

ks
. 
  

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

St
ra

te
gy

 
&

 G
o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

A
3
0
9
 

S
ta

ff
 E

x
p

e
n

se
s 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
M

ed
iu

m
 

C
R

2
 

2
0
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 c

o
st

 e
ff
ec

ti
ve

n
es

s 
o
f 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 
fo

r 
st

af
f 

ex
p
en

se
 
cl

ai
m

s.
 
 
T

h
e 

sc
o
p
e 

w
ill

 
in

cl
u
d
e 

ex
is

ti
n
g 

m
et

h
o
d
s 

vi
a 

p
ay

ro
ll,

 c
re

d
it
o
rs

 a
n
d
 p

et
ty

 c
as

h
. 
 

It
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 c

o
n
si

d
er

 a
lt
er

n
at

iv
es

 w
h
er

e 
ap

p
lic

ab
le

. 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

St
ra

te
gy

 
&

 G
o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

A
3
1
0
 

S
in

g
le

 S
ta

tu
s 

(F
u

tu
re

 P
a
y
) 

 
H

ig
h
 

C
R

2
 

3
0
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 f
o
r 

eq
u
al

 a
n
d
 f
u
tu

re
 p

ay
. 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

St
ra

te
gy

 
&

 G
o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

-2
  

A
3
1
1
 

C
u

st
o

m
e
r 

S
a
ti

sf
a
c
ti

o
n

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

- 
1
5
 

T
o
 

re
vi

ew
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
co

lle
ct

io
n
 

o
f 

C
u
st

o
m

er
 S

at
is

fa
ct

io
n
 d

at
a 

fo
r 

se
rv

ic
es

. 
 T

h
is

 r
ev

ie
w

 h
as

 b
ee

n
 

sp
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 
re

q
u
es

te
d
 
b
y 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

as
 
a 

ke
y 

p
ar

t 
o
f 

th
e 

C
o
m

p
re

h
en

si
ve

 A
re

a 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t.
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

St
ra

te
gy

 
&

 G
o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

A
0
9
0
 

F
le

x
ib

le
 W

o
rk

in
g
/W

o
rk

st
y
le

s 
M

ed
iu

m
 

- 
1
5
 

Fo
llo

w
-u

p
 t

o
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

n
d
 t

o
 e

x
am

in
e 

d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
ts

 
as

 r
eg

ar
d
s 

co
n
tr

o
l 

an
d
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
. 

 T
h
e 

re
vi

ew
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 

ex
am

in
e 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

th
e 

Fl
ex

i 
Sc

h
em

e 
in

 t
er

m
s 

o
f 

co
n
tr

o
l 
an

d
 a

ch
ie

vi
n
g 

o
b
je

ct
iv

es
. 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

St
ra

te
gy

 
&

 G
o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

 
 

 
 

2
1
3
 

 
 

 

 

37



  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

In
te

rn
al

 A
u
d

it
 S

tr
at

eg
y

 &
 A

n
n

u
al

  
P

la
n
 2

0
0
9

-2
0

1
0

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

8
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 n

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
 P

ag
e 

 1
6

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 A
u

d
it

 &
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
R

is
k

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

 K
e

y
 F

in
a

n
c
ia

l 
S

y
s

te
m

s
 R

e
v

ie
w

s
 

A
u

d
it

 D
e
ta

il
s 

R
e
f.

 
A

u
d

it
 

R
is

k
 

R
a
ti

n
g
 

C
o

rp
. 

R
is

k
/s

 
A

u
d

it
 

D
a
y
s 

B
ro

a
d

 S
c
o

p
e
 

A
u

d
it

 O
w

n
e
r 

T
im

in
g
 

A
0
0
9
 

M
a
in

 A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 

S
y
st

e
m

/G
e
n

e
ra

l 
L

e
d

g
e
r 

H
ig

h
 

C
R

2
 

1
2
 

Sy
st

em
s 

b
as

ed
 a

u
d
it
 t

o
 d

o
cu

m
en

t,
 e

va
lu

at
e 

an
d
 t

es
t 

ke
y 

sy
st

em
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
cl

u
d
in

g 
co

n
tr

o
ls

 t
o
 e

n
su

re
 a

ll 
ex

p
en

d
it
u
re

 
is

 c
o
rr

ec
tl
y 

st
at

ed
, 
su

sp
en

se
 a

cc
o
u
n
ts

 a
re

 b
ei

n
g 

m
an

ag
ed

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y,
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
ro

u
n
d
 t

h
e 

u
se

 o
f 
jo

u
rn

al
 t

ra
n
sf

er
, 

o
p
er

at
io

n
 o

f 
ke

y 
in

te
rf

ac
es

 a
n
d
 k

ey
 a

cc
o
u
n
t 

re
co

n
ci

lia
ti
o
n
s 

b
et

w
ee

n
 t

h
e 

fe
ed

er
 s

ys
te

m
s 

an
d
 g

en
er

al
 l
ed

ge
r.

 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

4
 

A
0
1
0
 

C
re

d
it

o
rs

/A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

a
y
a
b

le
 

H
ig

h
 

C
R

2
 

2
2
 

Sy
st

em
s 

b
as

ed
 a

p
p
ro

ac
h
 c

o
n
si

d
er

in
g 

ke
y 

ri
sk

 e
x
p
o
su

re
s 

an
d
 

in
cl

u
d
in

g 
p
ro

ce
ss

 m
ap

p
in

g 
o
f 
ke

y 
co

n
tr

o
ls

. 
  
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
te

st
in

g 
to

 p
ro

vi
d
e 

as
su

ra
n
ce

 t
h
at

  
ac

cu
ra

te
, 
ti
m

el
y 

p
ay

m
en

ts
 a

re
 

m
ad

e 
 o

n
ly

 t
o
 le

gi
ti
m

at
e 

cr
ed

it
o
rs

 f
o
r 

go
o
d
s 

an
d
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

p
ro

vi
d
ed

 t
o
 t

h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l. 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

4
 

A
0
1
1
 

D
e
b

to
rs

/A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 R

e
c
e
iv

a
b

le
 

H
ig

h
 

C
R

2
 

2
0
 

Sy
st

em
s 

b
as

ed
 a

p
p
ro

ac
h
 c

o
n
si

d
er

in
g 

ke
y 

ri
sk

 e
x
p
o
su

re
s 

an
d
 

in
cl

u
d
in

g 
p
ro

ce
ss

 m
ap

p
in

g 
o
f 
ke

y 
co

n
tr

o
ls

. 
  
 C

o
n
tr

o
l 
te

st
in

g 
to

 p
ro

vi
d
e 

as
su

ra
n
ce

 t
h
at

 a
cc

u
ra

te
, 
ti
m

el
y 

d
eb

to
r’

s 
in

vo
ic

es
 

ar
e 

ra
is

ed
 a

n
d
 t

h
er

e 
is

 e
ff
ec

ti
ve

 c
o
lle

ct
io

n
 a

n
d
 r

ec
o
ve

ry
 o

f 
in

co
m

e 
d
u
e.

 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

4
 

A
2
2
5
 

C
a
sh

 C
o

ll
e
c
ti

o
n

 a
n

d
 B

a
n

k
  

H
ig

h
 

C
R

2
 

1
0
 

Sy
st

em
s 

b
as

ed
 

ap
p
ro

ac
h
 

co
n
si

d
er

in
g 

ke
y 

ri
sk

 
ex

p
o
su

re
s,

 
in

cl
u
d
in

g 
p
ro

ce
ss

 
m

ap
p
in

g 
o
f 

ke
y 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 
an

d
 
co

m
p
lia

n
ce

 
te

st
in

g 
to

 p
ro

vi
d
e 

as
su

ra
n
ce

. 
  
  

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

4
 

A
0
1
3
 

T
re

a
su

ry
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
M

ed
iu

m
 

C
R

2
 

8
 

Sy
st

em
s 

b
as

ed
 

ap
p
ro

ac
h
 

co
n
si

d
er

in
g 

ke
y 

ri
sk

 
ex

p
o
su

re
s,

 
in

cl
u
d
in

g 
p
ro

ce
ss

 
m

ap
p
in

g 
o
f 

ke
y 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 
an

d
 
co

m
p
lia

n
ce

 
te

st
in

g 
to

 p
ro

vi
d
e 

as
su

ra
n
ce

. 
 T

h
e 

re
vi

ew
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 i
n
cl

u
d
e 

th
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l’s
 

co
m

p
lia

n
ce

 
w

it
h
 

re
ce

n
t 

A
u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
 

G
u
id

an
ce

. 
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

4
 

A
0
1
6
 

N
N

D
R

 (
B

u
si

n
e
ss

 R
a
te

s)
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
2
 

1
0
 

Sy
st

em
s 

b
as

ed
 a

u
d
it
 t

o
 d

o
cu

m
en

t,
 e

va
lu

at
e 

an
d
 t

es
t 

ke
y 

sy
st

em
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 r

is
k 

ex
p
o
su

re
s.

  
T

o
 i
n
cl

u
d
e 

lia
b
ili

ty
, 

ch
ar

gi
n
g,

 b
ill

in
g,

 c
o
lle

ct
io

n
 a

n
d
 r

ec
o
ve

ry
. 
 

  

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

4
 

38



  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

In
te

rn
al

 A
u
d

it
 S

tr
at

eg
y

 &
 A

n
n

u
al

  
P

la
n
 2

0
0
9

-2
0

1
0

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

8
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 n

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
 P

ag
e 

 1
7

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 A
u

d
it

 &
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
R

is
k

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

A
u

d
it

 D
e
ta

il
s 

R
e
f.

 
A

u
d

it
 

R
is

k
 

R
a
ti

n
g
 

C
o

rp
. 

R
is

k
/s

 
A

u
d

it
 

D
a
y
s 

B
ro

a
d

 S
c
o

p
e
 

A
u

d
it

 O
w

n
e
r 

T
im

in
g
 

A
0
1
7
 

H
o

u
si

n
g
 &

 C
o

u
n

c
il
 T

a
x
 B

e
n

e
fi

ts
 

 
H

ig
h
 

C
R

2
 

2
5
 

Sy
st

em
s 

b
as

ed
 a

u
d
it
 t

o
 d

o
cu

m
en

t,
 e

va
lu

at
e 

an
d
 t

es
t 

ke
y 

sy
st

em
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 r

is
k 

ex
p
o
su

re
s.

  
In

 p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

ve
ri

fic
at

io
n
 

o
f 
cl

ai
m

an
t 

d
at

a 
an

d
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
o
f 
en

ti
tl
em

en
t 

to
 b

en
ef

it
s,

 
re

co
n
ci

lia
ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
re

p
o
rt

in
g 

to
 r

ed
u
ce

 t
h
e 

ri
sk

 
o
f 
fr

au
d
, 
er

ro
r 

an
d
 i
n
ef

fic
ie

n
cy

. 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

4
 

A
0
1
8
 

H
o

u
si

n
g
 R

e
n

ts
 

H
ig

h
 

C
R

2
 

2
0
 

Sy
st

em
s 

b
as

ed
 a

u
d
it
 t

o
 d

o
cu

m
en

t,
 e

va
lu

at
e 

an
d
 t

es
t 

ke
y 

sy
st

em
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 r

is
k 

ex
p
o
su

re
s.

 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

4
 

A
0
1
2
 

C
a
p

it
a
l 
A

c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 
E

x
p

e
n

d
it

u
re

 
 

H
ig

h
 

C
R

2
 

1
5
 

Sy
st

em
s 

b
as

ed
 a

p
p
ro

ac
h
 c

o
n
si

d
er

in
g 

ke
y 

ri
sk

 e
x
p
o
su

re
s 

an
d
 

in
cl

u
d
in

g 
p
ro

ce
ss

 m
ap

p
in

g 
o
f 
ke

y 
co

n
tr

o
ls

. 
  
T

h
e 

re
vi

ew
 w

ill
 

in
cl

u
d
e 

th
e 

ac
cu

ra
cy

 o
f 
fo

re
ca

st
in

g,
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 r

ep
o
rt

s 
id

en
ti
fy

in
g 

sl
ip

p
ag

e 
an

d
 c

o
st

 o
ve

rr
u
n
s 

ac
cu

ra
te

ly
, p

ro
je

ct
 

o
u
tc

o
m

es
 a

n
d
 le

ss
o
n
s 

le
ar

n
t 

fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 p

ro
je

ct
s.

  
T

h
e 

au
d
it
 

w
ill

 i
n
cl

u
d
e 

th
e 

sy
st

em
 f
o
r 

th
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

o
f 
fix

ed
 a

ss
et

s,
 

re
co

rd
in

g 
an

d
 m

ec
h
an

is
m

s 
fo

r 
va

lu
in

g 
an

d
 d

ep
re

ci
at

in
g.

  
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

4
 

A
1
9
3
 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
F

ix
e
d

 A
ss

e
ts

 
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
2
 

1
5
 

R
ev

ie
w

 
o
f 

th
e 

sy
st

em
 

o
p
er

at
in

g 
fo

r 
th

e 
re

co
rd

in
g 

an
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri

n
g 

o
f 
th

e 
C

it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l’s
 f
ix

ed
 a

ss
et

s.
  

 T
h
e 

sc
o
p
e 

w
ill

 
in

 p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

fo
cu

s 
o
n
 t

h
e 

re
ce

n
tl
y 

im
p
le

m
en

te
d
 I

T
 s

ys
te

m
, 

d
is

p
o
sa

ls
 a

n
d
 c

h
an

ge
s 

in
 v

al
u
at

io
n
s.

 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

 3
 

A
0
1
4
 

P
a
y
ro

ll
/H

R
 

H
ig

h
 

C
R

2
 

2
4
 

Sy
st

em
s 

b
as

ed
 a

p
p
ro

ac
h
 c

o
n
si

d
er

in
g 

ke
y 

ri
sk

 e
x
p
o
su

re
s 

an
d
 

ke
y 

co
n
tr

o
ls

. 
  

 A
s 

H
R

 a
n
d
 p

ay
ro

ll 
an

d
 u

n
d
er

go
in

g 
si

gn
ifi

ca
n
t 

ch
an

ge
, 
th

e 
re

vi
ew

 w
ill

 i
n
cl

u
d
e 

n
ew

 a
n
d
 a

m
en

d
ed

 p
ro

ce
ss

es
. 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

St
ra

te
gy

 
&

 G
o
ve

rn
an

ce
 a

n
d
  

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

4
 

 
 

 
 

1
8
1
 

 
 

 

 

39



  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

In
te

rn
al

 A
u
d

it
 S

tr
at

eg
y

 &
 A

n
n

u
al

  
P

la
n
 2

0
0
9

-2
0

1
0

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

8
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 n

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
 P

ag
e 

 1
8

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 A
u

d
it

 &
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
R

is
k

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

 P
ro

c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
a
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
R

e
v
ie

w
s

 
A

u
d

it
 D

e
ta

il
s 

R
e
f.

 
A

u
d

it
 

R
is

k
 

R
a
ti

n
g
 

C
o

rp
. 

R
is

k
/s

 
A

u
d

it
 

D
a
y
s 

B
ro

a
d

 S
c
o

p
e
 

A
u

d
it

 O
w

n
e
r 

T
im

in
g
 

A
3
1
2
 

B
u

il
d

in
g
 S

c
h

o
o

ls
 f

o
r 

th
e
 F

u
tu

re
 

 
H

ig
h
 

C
R

3
 

1
0
 

T
o
 
re

vi
ew

 
co

n
tr

ac
tu

al
 
ar

ra
n
ge

m
en

ts
 
to

 
en

su
re

 
co

m
p
lia

n
ce

 
w

it
h
 g

o
o
d
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

an
d
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
o
f 

ri
sk

s.
  

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 k

ey
 

p
ro

ce
d
u
re

s 
an

d
 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 
o
p
er

at
in

g 
in

 
re

sp
ec

t 
o
f 

p
ro

je
ct

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
an

d
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri

n
g 

to
 

en
su

re
 

co
m

p
lia

n
ce

 
w

it
h
 

co
rp

o
ra

te
 a

n
d
 l
eg

al
 r

eq
u
ir

em
en

ts
. 
  
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Q

u
ar

te
r 

1
 

- 
4
 

A
0
2
5
 

E
d

u
c
a
ti

o
n

 P
F

I 
 

H
ig

h
 

C
R

1
5
 

8
 

Fo
llo

w
-u

p
 t

o
 t

h
e 

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 r

ev
ie

w
. 
 

  

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Q

u
ar

te
r 

 3
 

A
0
5
3
 

S
tr

e
e
t 

L
ig

h
ti

n
g
 C

o
n

tr
a
c
t 

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

C
R

1
5
 

1
2
 

T
o
 

re
vi

ew
 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

co
n
tr

ac
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 a

n
d
 o

p
er

at
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
co

n
tr

ac
t.
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

en
t 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

 3
 

A
2
6
4
 

C
it

y
 P

a
rk

s 
 U

se
 o

f 
S

u
b

c
o

n
tr

a
c
to

rs
 

 

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
1
5
 

8
 

Fo
llo

w
-u

p
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
ac

ti
o
n
 t

ak
en

 t
o
 r

ed
u
ce

 e
x
p
en

d
it
u
re

 
  

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

en
t 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

 3
 

A
0
4
9
 

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 
W

a
st

e
 
M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
a
c
t 

–
 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
 

H
ig

h
 

C
R

1
5
 

2
0
 

Jo
in

t 
re

vi
ew

 w
it
h
 E

SC
C

 I
n
te

rn
al

 A
u
d
it
 o

n
 t

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

co
n
tr

ac
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d
 a

ch
ie

vi
n
g 

va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

o
n
ey

. 
 T

h
e 

re
vi

ew
 w

ill
 i
n
cl

u
d
e 

re
cy

cl
in

g 
an

d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g 

o
f 
ke

y 
ta

rg
et

s.
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

en
t 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

 3
 

A
0
4
9
 

In
te

g
ra

te
d

 
W

a
st

e
 
M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
C

o
n

tr
a
c
t 

–
 
C

h
a
rg

in
g
 
(t

o
n

n
a
g
e
) 

to
 B

&
H

C
C

 

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
1
5
 

1
2
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

ch
an

gi
n
g 

m
ec

h
an

is
m

 t
o
 B

&
H

C
C

 s
p
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 f
o
r 

w
as

te
 t

o
n
n
ag

e.
 

  

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

en
t 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

2
 

A
3
1
3
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
 

H
ig

h
 

C
R

2
 

1
2
 

T
o
 

re
vi

ew
 

th
e 

p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
st

ra
te

gy
 

fo
r 

th
e 

co
u
n
ci

l. 
T

o
 

as
se

ss
 
ce

n
tr

al
 
p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
p
o
lic

ie
s 

to
 
co

n
fir

m
 
co

m
p
lia

n
ce

 
w

it
h
 l
eg

is
la

ti
o
n
 a

n
d
 b

es
t 

p
ra

ct
ic

e.
  

       

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

2
 

40



  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

In
te

rn
al

 A
u
d

it
 S

tr
at

eg
y

 &
 A

n
n

u
al

  
P

la
n
 2

0
0
9

-2
0

1
0

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

8
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 n

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
 P

ag
e 

 1
9

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 A
u

d
it

 &
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
R

is
k

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

A
u

d
it

 D
e
ta

il
s 

R
e
f.

 
A

u
d

it
 

R
is

k
 

R
a
ti

n
g
 

C
o

rp
. 

R
is

k
/s

 
A

u
d

it
 

D
a
y
s 

B
ro

a
d

 S
c
o

p
e
 

A
u

d
it

 O
w

n
e
r 

T
im

in
g
 

A
3
1
4
 

U
se

 o
f 

C
o

n
su

lt
a
n

ts
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
2
 

1
5
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

u
se

 o
f 

co
n
su

lt
an

ts
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
ce

 w
it
h
 

p
ro

cu
re

m
en

ts
 

p
ro

ce
ss

es
 

an
d
 

th
at

 
th

ey
 

ac
h
ie

ve
 

ex
p
ec

te
d
 

o
u
tc

o
m

es
. 

 
T

h
e 

sc
o
p
e 

w
ill

 
in

cl
u
d
e 

fr
eq

u
en

cy
 
o
f 

u
se

, 
to

ta
l 

cu
m

u
la

ti
ve

 s
p
en

d
 a

n
d
 h

ig
h
 u

se
rs

 o
f 
co

n
su

lt
an

cy
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

 1
 

A
3
1
5
 

C
o

n
tr

a
c
t 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
M

ed
iu

m
 

C
R

1
5
 

1
8
 

T
o
 

re
vi

ew
 

th
e 

ad
eq

u
ac

y 
o
f 

co
n
tr

ac
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 a

cr
o
ss

 t
h
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l. 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

A
3
1
6
 

A
u

to
m

a
ti

o
n

 
o

f 
Im

p
re

st
 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ts
 P

ro
c
e
ss

in
g
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
2
 

1
2
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 a
t 

th
e 

d
es

ig
n
 s

ta
ge

 o
f 

th
e 

ch
an

ge
 p

ro
je

ct
. 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

- 
2
 

A
0
1
8
 

H
o

u
si

n
g
 

R
e
p

a
ir

s 
(P

ro
c
u

re
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
n

e
w

 h
o

u
si

n
g
 r

e
p

a
ir

s 
c
o

n
tr

a
c
t)

 
  

H
ig

h
 

C
R

1
, 

C
R

1
5
 

1
5
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

ad
eq

u
ac

y 
o
f 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
o
f 

ri
sk

s 
in

 t
h
e 

n
ew

 c
o
n
tr

ac
t 

p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t 
ar

ra
n
ge

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

h
o
u
si

n
g 

re
p
ai

rs
. 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
si

n
g 

&
 C

it
y 

Su
p
p
o
rt

 
Q

u
ar

te
r 

1
 

A
0
8
3
 

G
a
s 

S
e
rv

ic
in

g
 C

o
n

tr
a
c
t 

M
ed

iu
m

 
 

1
2
 

T
o
 

re
vi

ew
 

th
e 

p
ro

ce
d
u
re

s 
in

 
o
p
er

at
io

n
 

fo
r 

m
an

ag
in

g 
h
e 

co
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 o

f 
ga

s 
sa

fe
ty

 c
h
ec

ks
. 

  
T

h
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

a 
fo

llo
w

-u
p
 t

o
 

th
e 

re
vi

ew
 c

ar
ri

ed
 o

u
t 

in
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
. 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
si

n
g 

&
 C

it
y 

Su
p
p
o
rt

 
Q

u
ar

te
r 

2
 

A
3
1
7
 

L
o

c
a
l 

D
e
li
v
e
ry

 
V

e
h

ic
le

 
fo

r 
H

o
u

si
n

g
 

H
ig

h
 

 
8
 

Fo
llo

w
-u

p
 t

o
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 r

ev
ie

w
. 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
si

n
g 

&
 C

it
y 

Su
p
p
o
rt

 
Q

u
ar

te
r 

2
 

 
 

 
 

1
6
2
 

 
 

 

 

41



  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

In
te

rn
al

 A
u
d

it
 S

tr
at

eg
y

 &
 A

n
n

u
al

  
P

la
n
 2

0
0
9

-2
0

1
0

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

8
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 n

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
 P

ag
e 

 2
0

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 A
u

d
it

 &
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
R

is
k

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

 IC
T

 a
n

d
 E

-G
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
R

e
v
ie

w
s

 
A

u
d

it
 D

e
ta

il
s 

R
e
f.

 
A

u
d

it
 

R
is

k
 

R
a
ti

n
g
 

C
o

rp
. 

R
is

k
/s

 
A

u
d

it
 

D
a
y
s 

B
ro

a
d

 S
c
o

p
e
 

A
u

d
it

 O
w

n
e
r 

T
im

in
g
 

A
2
5
1
 

D
a
ta

 M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 S

e
c
u

ri
ty

 
A

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 

 

H
ig

h
 

- 
2
5
 

T
o
 

re
vi

ew
 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

an
d
 

se
cu

ri
ty

 
ar

ra
n
ge

m
en

ts
 

o
ve

r 
in

 
p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

cr
it
ic

al
/s

en
si

ti
ve

 
d
at

a,
 

in
cl

u
d
in

g 
te

st
in

g 
to

 v
al

id
at

e 
co

n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 p

la
ce

 a
n
d
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
ex

is
ti
n
g 

an
d
 r

eq
u
ir

ed
 g

u
id

an
ce

 t
o
 s

ta
ff
 o

n
 a

cc
ep

ta
b
le

 p
ra

ct
ic

e 
fo

r 
d
at

a 
h
an

d
lin

g.
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
  

A
3
1
8
 

M
o

b
il
e
 C

o
m

p
u

ti
n

g
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
- 

1
0
 

T
o
 

ev
al

u
at

e 
th

e 
ad

eq
u
ac

y 
o
f 

se
cu

ri
ty

 
in

cl
u
d
in

g 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
ac

ce
ss

 c
o
n
tr

o
l 

to
 t

h
e 

n
et

w
o
rk

 f
o
r 

re
m

o
te

 a
n
d
 h

o
m

ew
o
rk

in
g 

ac
ro

ss
 t

h
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l. 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

A
3
1
9
 

IC
T

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

- 
1
5
 

T
h
e 

re
vi

ew
 w

ill
 e

x
am

in
e 

th
e 

em
b
ed

d
in

g 
o
f 

th
e 

IC
T

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d
 e

n
su

re
 a

lig
n
ed

 t
o
 t

h
e 

b
u
si

n
es

s 
o
b
je

ct
iv

es
 a

n
d
 p

ri
o
ri

ti
es

 o
f 

th
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l. 
 F

u
rt

h
er

 t
h
at

 t
h
e 

te
ch

n
o
lo

gy
, 

p
eo

p
le

 a
n
d
 

p
ro

ce
ss

es
 

in
 

p
la

ce
 

ar
e 

ap
p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

to
 

d
el

iv
er

 
th

e 
IC

T
 

St
ra

te
gy

. 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

A
3
2
0
 

U
se

 o
f 

 L
o

c
a
l 

S
p

re
a
d

sh
e
e
ts

 a
n

d
 

D
a
ta

b
a
se

s 
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
- 

1
0
 

A
 

re
vi

ew
 

o
f 

th
e 

u
se

 
o
f 

lo
ca

l 
sp

re
ad

sh
ee

ts
 

an
d
 

d
at

ab
as

es
 

w
h
ic

h
 h

o
ld

 s
en

si
ti
ve

 a
n
d
/o

r 
b
u
si

n
es

s 
cr

it
ic

al
 d

at
a 

se
p
ar

at
el

y 
fr

o
m

 t
h
e 

co
re

 s
ys

te
m

s.
  

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 g

u
id

an
ce

 
in

 p
la

ce
 f
o
r 

th
ei

r 
u
se

 t
o
 e

n
su

re
 d

at
a 

is
 h

el
d
 s

ec
u
re

ly
. 
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

A
3
2
1
 

C
o

n
ta

c
tP

o
in

t 
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
- 

1
2
 

T
o
 
ex

am
in

e 
IC

T
 
se

cu
ri

ty
 
co

n
tr

o
ls

 
to

 
en

su
re

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

an
d
 

co
m

p
ly

 w
it
h
 t

h
e 

C
o
d
e 

o
f 
C

o
n
n
ec

ti
o
n
. 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

A
3
2
2
 

T
e
le

p
h

o
n

e
 S

w
it

c
h

 S
e
c
u

ri
ty

 
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
- 

1
0
 

A
 
h
ea

lt
h
 
ch

ec
k 

o
n
 
th

e 
co

n
fig

u
ra

ti
o
n
 
to

 
en

su
re

 
co

m
p
lia

n
ce

 
w

it
h
 

b
es

t 
p
ra

ct
ic

e 
an

d
 

p
ro

te
ct

io
n
 

ag
ai

n
st

 
th

e 
ri

sk
 

o
f 

te
le

p
h
o
n
e 

fr
au

d
. 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

A
3
2
3
 

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s 

IC
T

 A
p

p
li
c
a
ti

o
n

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

- 
1
0
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

th
e 

n
ew

 l
ib

ra
ry

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

sy
st

em
. 

     

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

2
 

42



  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

In
te

rn
al

 A
u
d

it
 S

tr
at

eg
y

 &
 A

n
n

u
al

  
P

la
n
 2

0
0
9

-2
0

1
0

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

8
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 n

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
 P

ag
e 

 2
1

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 A
u

d
it

 &
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
R

is
k

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

A
u

d
it

 D
e
ta

il
s 

R
e
f.

 
A

u
d

it
 

R
is

k
 

R
a
ti

n
g
 

C
o

rp
. 

R
is

k
/s

 
A

u
d

it
 

D
a
y
s 

B
ro

a
d

 S
c
o

p
e
 

A
u

d
it

 O
w

n
e
r 

T
im

in
g
 

A
2
6
8
 

H
u

m
a
n

 
R

e
so

u
rc

e
 

S
y
st

e
m

 
A

c
q

u
is

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 I
m

p
le

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
H

ig
h
 

- 
5
0
 

T
h
e 

T
ea

m
Sp

ir
it
 p

ay
ro

ll 
ap

p
lic

at
io

n
 i

s 
b
ei

n
g 

re
p
la

ce
d
 w

it
h
 t

h
e 

M
id

la
n
d
 

H
R

 
Sy

st
em

. 
 

T
h
is

 
re

vi
ew

 
w

ill
 

ev
al

u
at

e 
th

e 
im

p
le

m
en

ta
ti
o
n
 

o
f 

th
e 

H
R

 
sy

st
em

 
as

 
an

 
o
n
go

in
g 

b
as

is
 

th
ro

u
gh

o
u
t 

th
e 

ye
ar

. 
 

T
h
e 

au
d
it
 

w
ill

 
al

so
 

b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d
 

in
 

d
is

cr
et

e 
st

ag
es

 
in

 
p
ro

vi
d
in

g 
o
n
go

in
g 

ad
vi

ce
 

o
n
 

co
n
tr

o
l 

re
q
u
ir

em
en

ts
 a

n
d
 p

ro
vi

d
in

g 
as

su
ra

n
ce

. 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

St
ra

te
gy

 
&

 
G

o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

an
d
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
-

4
 

A
2
7
2
 

D
e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
C

it
y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
’s

 
In

te
rn

e
t 

a
n

d
 I

n
tr

a
n

e
t 

 

M
ed

iu
m

 
- 

1
5
 

T
o
 
re

vi
ew

 
ad

eq
u
ac

y 
o
f 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 
o
ve

r 
d
ev

el
o
p
m

en
t 

an
d
 
to

 
p
ro

vi
d
e 

p
ro

je
ct

 a
ss

u
ra

n
ce

. 
  

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 
Fi

n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
-

4
 

A
2
7
4
 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 S
e
c
u

ri
ty

 
 

H
ig

h
 

- 
1
2
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 n

et
w

o
rk

 s
ec

u
ri

ty
 i
n
cl

u
d
in

g 
co

n
si

d
er

at
io

n
 o

f: 
 

P
er

im
et

er
 s

ec
u
ri

ty
 

 
N

et
w

o
rk

 a
rc

h
it
ec

tu
re

 
 

N
et

w
o
rk

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 a
n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 
Fi

n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

4
 

A
3
2
4
 

D
e
sk

to
p

 S
e
c
u

ri
ty

 
H

ig
h
 

 
1
2
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 
co

n
tr

o
ls

 o
p
er

at
in

g 
fo

r 
d
es

kt
o
p
 

se
cu

ri
ty

, 
in

cl
u
d
in

g 
d
at

a 
d
o
w

n
lo

ad
in

g,
 v

ir
u
s 

co
n
tr

o
l 
an

d
 u

se
 o

f 
ad

d
it
io

n
al

 h
ar

d
w

ar
e 

d
ev

ic
es

. 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 
Fi

n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

 1
 

A
3
2
5
 

D
a
ta

 T
ra

n
sm

is
si

o
n

  
H

ig
h
 

 
1
0
 

D
at

a 
as

su
ra

n
ce

 
re

vi
ew

 
to

 
ev

al
u
at

e 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

o
f 

te
ch

n
o
lo

gy
 

an
d
 

ap
p
lic

at
io

n
 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 
u
se

d
 

to
 

su
p
p
o
rt

 
th

e 
h
o
ld

in
g 

an
d
 t

ra
n
sm

is
si

o
n
 o

f 
se

n
si

ti
ve

 d
at

as
et

s.
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 
Fi

n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

 1
 

A
3
2
6
 

A
n

ti
-V

ir
u

s 
C

o
n

tr
o

l 
H

ig
h
 

 
1
0
 

T
o
 
re

vi
ew

 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

o
f 

A
n
ti
-V

ir
u
s 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 
to

 
en

su
re

 c
o
m

p
lia

n
ce

 w
it
h
 b

es
t 

p
ra

ct
ic

e.
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

A
2
7
6
 

G
o

v
e
rn

m
e
n

t 
C

o
n

n
e
c
t 

(C
O

C
O

) 
M

ed
iu

m
 

- 
1
2
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 a
n
d
 r

is
k 

ex
p
o
su

re
 t

o
 

th
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l. 
 T

o
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 t
o
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

G
o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

C
o
n
n
ec

t 
St

an
d
ar

d
s 

  

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 
Fi

n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

2
 

A
0
4
1
 

IC
T

 S
e
c
u

ri
ty

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s 
  

H
ig

h
 

- 
8
 

Fo
llo

w
-u

p
 t

o
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

n
 t

h
e 

IS
O

2
7
0
0
1
 I

T
 S

ec
u
ri

ty
 

G
ap

 A
n
al

ys
is

. 
  

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 
Fi

n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

4
 

43



  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

In
te

rn
al

 A
u
d

it
 S

tr
at

eg
y

 &
 A

n
n

u
al

  
P

la
n
 2

0
0
9

-2
0

1
0

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

8
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 n

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
 P

ag
e 

 2
2

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 A
u

d
it

 &
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
R

is
k

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

A
u

d
it

 D
e
ta

il
s 

R
e
f.

 
A

u
d

it
 

R
is

k
 

R
a
ti

n
g
 

C
o

rp
. 

R
is

k
/s

 
A

u
d

it
 

D
a
y
s 

B
ro

a
d

 S
c
o

p
e
 

A
u

d
it

 O
w

n
e
r 

T
im

in
g
 

A
0
3
7
 

D
is

a
st

e
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g
 a

n
d

 R
e
c
o

v
e
ry

 
H

ig
h
 

- 
1
2
 

T
o
 

re
vi

ew
 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

d
is

as
te

r 
re

co
ve

ry
 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 i

n
 p

ar
ti
cu

la
r 

fo
r 

b
u
si

n
es

s 
cr

it
ic

al
 s

ys
te

m
s.

  
T

h
e 

re
vi

ew
 w

ill
 i
n
cl

u
d
e 

b
ac

k-
u
p
 a

n
d
 o

ff
-s

it
e 

st
o
ra

ge
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 
to

 e
n
su

re
 s

ec
u
ri

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
C

o
u
n
ci

l’s
 d

at
a.

 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 
Fi

n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

 3
 

A
3
2
7
 

E
-m

a
il
 

  

M
ed

iu
m

 
- 

8
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l’s
 e

m
ai

l 
co

n
fig

u
ra

ti
o
n
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 

b
es

t 
p
ra

ct
ic

e 
is

 
fo

llo
w

ed
. 

 
T

o
 

fu
rt

h
er

 
re

vi
ew

 
th

e 
C

it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l’s
 e

m
ai

l 
p
ro

ce
d
u
re

s 
an

d
 p

o
lic

y.
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 
Fi

n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

 3
 

A
3
2
8
 

N
e
tw

o
rk

 
S

e
c
u

ri
ty

 
(E

th
ic

a
l 

H
a
c
k
in

g
) 

 

H
ig

h
 

- 
8
 

T
h
is

 
re

vi
ew

 
w

ill
 
u
se

 
an

 
ex

te
rn

al
 
fir

m
 
to

 
u
n
d
er

ta
ke

 
et

h
ic

al
 

h
ac

ki
n
g 

o
r 

p
en

et
ra

ti
o
n
 t

es
ti
n
g 

o
f 

th
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l’s
 n

et
w

o
rk

 
to

 t
es

t 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

o
f 
co

n
tr

o
l 
o
ve

r 
re

m
o
te

 h
ac

ki
n
g.

 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 
Fi

n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

4
 

A
3
2
9
 

T
h

ir
d

 P
a
rt

 A
c
c
e
ss

 
A

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 S
e
c
u

ri
ty

 
 

H
ig

h
 

- 
1
2
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 a

n
d
 c

o
n
tr

o
l 

fo
r 

th
ir

d
 
p
ar

ty
 
ac

ce
ss

 
to

 
th

e 
C

it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l 
n
et

w
o
rk

 
(i
n
cl

u
d
in

g 
ac

ce
ss

 
se

t 
u
p
, 

au
th

en
ti
ca

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

3
rd

 
p
ar

t 
u
se

rs
, 

se
cu

ri
ty

 
co

n
tr

o
ls

 o
ve

r 
d
at

a 
tr

an
sm

is
si

o
n
, 

3
rd
 p

ar
ty

 I
C

T
 e

n
vi

ro
n
m

en
t 

th
re

at
s,

 p
re

ve
n
ti
o
n
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 o
ve

r 
ea

ch
 a

cc
es

s 
p
o
in

t)
. 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 
Fi

n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

 3
 

A
3
4
6
 

IC
T

 
S

e
rv

ic
e
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 
a
n

d
 

In
c
id

e
n

t 
M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
 

 
 

8
 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 
th

e 
Se

rv
ic

e 
D

es
k 

in
cl

u
d
in

g:
 

 
P
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

o
f 
u
se

 r
eq

u
es

ts
 

 
R

es
o
lu

ti
o
n
 o

f 
re

p
o
rt

ed
 p

ro
b
le

m
s 

 
H

an
d
lin

g 
an

d
 e

sc
al

at
io

n
 o

f 
IT

 in
ci

d
en

ts
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 
Fi

n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

2
 

A
1
5
0
 

D
is

p
o

sa
l 
o

f 
IT

 H
a
rd

w
a
re

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

- 
5
 

Fo
llo

w
-u

p
 t

o
 2

0
0
8
/0

9
 r

ev
ie

w
. 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 
Fi

n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

 
 

 
 

2
7
4
 

 
 

 

 

44



  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

In
te

rn
al

 A
u
d

it
 S

tr
at

eg
y

 &
 A

n
n

u
al

  
P

la
n
 2

0
0
9

-2
0

1
0

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

8
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 n

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
 P

ag
e 

 2
3

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 A
u

d
it

 &
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
R

is
k

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

 S
e
rv

ic
e
 S

p
e
c
if

ic
 R

e
v
ie

w
s

 
A

u
d

it
 D

e
ta

il
s 

R
e
f.

 
A

u
d

it
 

R
is

k
 

R
a
ti

n
g
 

C
o

rp
. 

R
is

k
/s

 
A

u
d

it
 

D
a
y
s 

B
ro

a
d

 S
c
o

p
e
 

A
u

d
it

 O
w

n
e
r 

T
im

in
g
 

A
3
3
0
 

S
p

e
c
ia

l 
E

d
u

c
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

N
e
e
d

s 
(S

E
N

) 
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
- 

1
2
 

T
o
 

re
vi

ew
 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

co
n
tr

o
l 

o
ve

r 
sp

ec
ia

l 
ed

u
ca

ti
o
n
al

 n
ee

d
. 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

A
3
3
1
 

C
o

n
ta

c
tP

o
in

t 
(C

h
il
d

re
n

’s
 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
In

d
e
x
) 

 

H
ig

h
 

- 
2
0
 

T
o
 

re
vi

ew
 

th
e 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 
fo

r 
th

e 
in

te
gr

at
io

n
 

w
it
h
 

C
en

tr
al

 
G

o
ve

rn
m

en
ts

 
C

o
n
ta

ct
P
o
in

t 
Sy

st
em

, 
T

h
e 

re
vi

ew
 
w

ill
 
as

se
ss

 
th

e 
co

m
p
lia

n
ce

 
w

it
h
 

G
o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

gu
id

el
in

es
, 

re
gu

la
ti
o
n
s,

 
ti
m

es
ca

le
s,

 
p
ro

je
ct

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ar

ra
n
ge

m
en

ts
, 

st
ak

eh
o
ld

er
 

an
d
 l
o
ca

l p
ar

tn
er

 i
n
vo

lv
em

en
t 

in
 t

h
e 

im
p
le

m
en

ta
ti
o
n
. 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

A
3
3
2
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 

–
 

A
ss

e
t 

M
a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
- 

1
5
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

co
n
tr

o
l 

fo
r 

as
se

t 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ac

ro
ss

 a
 s

am
p
le

 o
f 
sc

h
o
o
ls

. 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

A
3
4
5
 

 
S

c
h

o
o

ls
 

T
h

e
m

a
ti

c
 

R
e
v
ie

w
 

–
 

C
a
te

ri
n

g
 

 

M
ed

iu
m

 
- 

1
2
 

T
o
 
re

vi
ew

 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

o
f 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 
in

cl
u
d
in

g 
co

n
tr

ac
t 

m
an

ag
em

en
t.
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

A
3
3
3
 

C
u

lt
u

re
 

&
 

E
n

te
rp

ri
se

 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

 I
n

c
o

m
e
 

H
ig

h
 

C
R

2
 

2
5
 

In
co

m
e 

re
p
re

se
n
ts

 a
 s

ig
n
ifi

ca
n
t 

p
ar

t 
o
f 
th

e 
b
u
d
ge

t 
fo

r 
C

u
lt
u
re

 
an

d
 
E
n
te

rp
ri

se
 
D

ir
ec

to
ra

te
. 

 
T

h
is

 
re

vi
ew

 
w

ill
 
ex

am
in

e 
th

e 
co

n
tr

o
l 

o
ve

r 
in

co
m

e 
an

d
 

th
e 

m
ax

im
is

at
io

n
 

ac
ro

ss
 

th
e 

D
ir

ec
to

ra
te

. 
  

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

C
u
lt
u
re

 
an

d
 

E
n
te

rp
ri

se
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

A
3
3
4
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
o

 a
sy

lu
m

 s
e
e
k
e
rs

 w
it

h
 

n
o

 
ri

g
h

t 
to

 
re

m
a
in

 
in

 
th

e
 

U
K

 
a
n

d
 r

e
c
o

u
rs

e
 t

o
 p

u
b

li
c
 f

u
n

d
s 

 

M
ed

iu
m

 
- 

1
2
 

T
h
is

 
re

vi
ew

 
w

ill
 

as
se

ss
 

p
ro

ce
ss

es
 

fo
r 

p
ro

vi
d
in

g 
su

p
p
o
rt

 
in

cl
u
d
in

g 
d
ir

ec
to

ra
te

 r
ec

h
ar

ge
s 

an
d
 b

u
d
ge

t 
tr

ea
tm

en
t.
 

  

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

en
t 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

A
0
5
2
 

O
n

-S
tr

e
e
t 

 
a
n

d
 

O
ff

 
S

tr
e
e
t 

 
P

a
rk

in
g
 I

n
c
o

m
e
 

H
ig

h
 

C
R

1
5
 

2
0
 

T
o
 

re
vi

ew
 

th
e 

sy
st

em
s 

fo
r 

co
lle

ct
in

g,
 

co
n
tr

o
lli

n
g 

an
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri

n
g 

o
f 

p
ar

ki
n
g 

in
co

m
e 

fr
o
m

 o
n
-s

tr
ee

t 
p
ay

 a
n
d
 d

is
p
la

y 
m

ac
h
in

es
 

an
d
 

ca
r 

p
ar

ks
. 

 
T

h
e 

re
vi

ew
 

w
ill

 
in

cl
u
d
e 

n
ew

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ar

ra
n
ge

m
en

ts
 f
o
r 

ca
r 

p
ar

ks
. 

     

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

en
t 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

4
 

45



  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

In
te

rn
al

 A
u
d

it
 S

tr
at

eg
y

 &
 A

n
n

u
al

  
P

la
n
 2

0
0
9

-2
0

1
0

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

8
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 n

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
 P

ag
e 

 2
4

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 A
u

d
it

 &
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
R

is
k

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

A
u

d
it

 D
e
ta

il
s 

R
e
f.

 
A

u
d

it
 

R
is

k
 

R
a
ti

n
g
 

C
o

rp
. 

R
is

k
/s

 
A

u
d

it
 

D
a
y
s 

B
ro

a
d

 S
c
o

p
e
 

A
u

d
it

 O
w

n
e
r 

T
im

in
g
 

A
1
6
5
 

B
u

il
d

in
g
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 
M

ed
iu

m
 

C
R

2
 

1
5
 

T
h
er

e 
is

 a
 r

eq
u
ir

em
en

t 
im

p
o
se

d
 b

y 
C

en
tr

al
 G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

fo
r 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e 

to
 b

re
ak

ev
en

 o
ve

r 
a 

3
 y

ea
r 

p
er

io
d
 a

n
d
 b

e 
n
o
n
 

p
ro

fit
 m

ak
in

g.
  

  
T

h
is

 r
ev

ie
w

 w
ill

 c
o
n
si

d
er

 t
h
e 

p
ro

ce
ss

 b
y 

w
h
ic

h
 

th
e 

ch
ar

ge
 

is
 

ca
lc

u
la

te
d
, 

se
rv

ic
e 

co
st

s 
an

d
 

co
m

p
et

it
iv

en
es

s 
ag

ai
n
st

 i
n
 p

ar
ti
cu

la
r 

p
ri

va
te

 s
ec

to
r 

p
ro

vi
d
er

s.
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

en
t 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

A
3
3
5
 

K
in

g
 A

lf
re

d
 L

e
is

u
re

 C
e
n

tr
e
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
2
 

8
 

T
o
 

re
vi

ew
 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 
o
p
er

at
in

g 
at

 
th

e 
L
ei

su
re

 C
en

tr
e.

 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

en
t 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

2
 

A
2
2
0
 

S
e
a
fr

o
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

C
R

2
 

1
2
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

Se
af

ro
n
t 

Se
rv

ic
es

 i
n
 p

ar
ti
cu

la
r 

tr
ad

in
g 

ac
ti
vi

ti
es

 
fo

r 
ad

eq
u
ac

y 
o
f 
co

n
tr

o
l. 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

en
t 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

A
1
9
1
 

G
o

lf
 C

o
u

rs
e
s 

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

C
R

2
 

5
 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 b
e 

a 
fo

llo
w

-u
p
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

o
 t

h
at

 c
ar

ri
ed

 o
u
t 

in
 2

0
0
7
/0

8
. 
 

It
 w

ill
 c

o
m

p
le

m
en

t 
th

e 
w

id
er

 r
ev

ie
w

 p
la

n
n
ed

 f
o
r 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
 o

f 
G

o
lf 

C
o
u
rs

es
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

en
t 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

A
3
3
6
 

W
a
st

e
 E

n
fo

rc
e
m

e
n

t 
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
2
 

1
2
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 w

as
te

 e
n
fo

rc
em

en
t 

in
 p

ar
ti
cu

la
r 

tr
ad

e 
w

as
te

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

en
t 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

A
1
6
4
 

B
lu

e
 B

a
d

g
e
s 

  

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
2
 

1
0
 

T
h
e 

b
lu

e 
b
ad

ge
s 

d
is

ab
le

d
 

p
ar

ki
n
g 

sc
h
em

e 
h
as

 
b
ee

n
 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
n
t 

p
ri

o
ri

ty
 

fo
r 

th
e 

N
at

io
n
al

 
Fr

au
d
 

In
it
ia

ti
ve

. 
 

T
h
is

 
re

vi
ew

 w
ill

 e
x
am

in
e 

th
e 

fin
d
in

gs
 f
ro

m
 t

h
e 

N
FI

 a
n
d
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 a

 
ge

n
er

al
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

f 
th

e 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 s
ys

te
m

s 
o
f 
co

n
tr

o
l 
to

 e
n
su

re
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
p
ro

ce
ss

in
g 

an
d
 m

o
n
it
o
ri

n
g.

  
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

E
n
vi

ro
n
m

en
t 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

A
1
9
4
 

B
ri

g
h

to
n

 C
e
n

tr
e
 

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

C
R

2
 

1
2
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

d
eq

u
ac

y 
o
f 

sy
st

em
s 

fo
r 

in
co

m
e 

an
d
 e

x
p
en

d
it
u
re

, 
in

 p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

fo
r 

ev
en

ts
. 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

C
u
lt
u
ra

l 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

4
 

A
2
0
5
 

R
o

y
a
l 
P

a
v
il
io

n
 

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

C
R

2
 

1
2
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 a

d
eq

u
ac

y 
o
f 

sy
st

em
s 

fo
r 

in
co

m
e,

 e
x
p
en

d
it
u
re

 a
n
d
 

tr
ad

in
g 

sy
st

em
s.

 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

C
u
lt
u
ra

l 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

 3
 

A
2
3
5
 

L
ib

ra
ri

e
s 

(S
to

c
k
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t)
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
2
 

8
  

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

st
o
ck

 s
ec

u
ri

ty
 a

rr
an

ge
m

en
ts

 f
o
r 

a 
sa

m
p
le

 o
f 

lib
ra

ri
es

. 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

C
u
lt
u
ra

l 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

 3
 

A
0
7
7
 

C
o

n
c
e
ss

io
n

a
ry

 F
a
re

s 
 

H
ig

h
 

C
R

2
 

5
 

Fo
llo

w
-u

p
 r

ev
ie

w
 o

n
 t

h
e 

sy
st

em
 f

o
r 

m
an

ag
in

g 
co

n
ce

ss
io

n
ar

y 
fa

re
s.

 
  

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

4
 

46



  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

In
te

rn
al

 A
u
d

it
 S

tr
at

eg
y

 &
 A

n
n

u
al

  
P

la
n
 2

0
0
9

-2
0

1
0

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

8
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 n

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
 P

ag
e 

 2
5

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 A
u

d
it

 &
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
R

is
k

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

A
u

d
it

 D
e
ta

il
s 

R
e
f.

 
A

u
d

it
 

R
is

k
 

R
a
ti

n
g
 

C
o

rp
. 

R
is

k
/s

 
A

u
d

it
 

D
a
y
s 

B
ro

a
d

 S
c
o

p
e
 

A
u

d
it

 O
w

n
e
r 

T
im

in
g
 

A
0
1
5
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 

T
a
x
 

S
in

g
le

 
P

e
rs

o
n

s 
D

is
c
o

u
n

ts
 a

n
d

 E
x
e
m

p
ti

o
n

s 
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
2
 

1
2
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 t
o
 m

ax
im

is
e 

in
co

m
e 

co
lle

ct
ed

. 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

2
 

A
2
1
8
 

B
e
re

a
v
e
m

e
n

t 
S

e
rv

ic
e
s 

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

C
R

2
 

1
2
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 o

p
er

at
io

n
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

se
rv

ic
e.

 
  

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

A
3
3
7
 

In
te

rn
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
R

e
p

o
rt

in
g
 S

ta
n

d
a
rd

s 
M

ed
iu

m
 

C
R

2
 

8
 

T
o
 

re
vi

ew
 

th
e 

ac
ti
o
n
s 

ta
ke

n
 

fo
r 

th
e 

im
p
le

m
en

ta
ti
o
n
 

an
d
 

co
m

p
lia

n
ce

. 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
- 

4
 

A
1
7
2
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

in
g
 P

e
o

p
le

 
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
- 

1
5
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 
co

n
tr

o
l. 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
si

n
g 

&
 C

it
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
Q

u
ar

te
r 

3
 

A
3
3
8
 

H
o

u
si

n
g
 A

ll
o

c
a
ti

o
n

s 
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
- 

1
5
 

T
o
 

re
vi

ew
 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 
fo

r 
h
o
u
si

n
g 

al
lo

ca
ti
o
n
s.

 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
si

n
g 

&
 C

it
y 

Su
p
p
o
rt

 
Q

u
ar

te
r 

1
 

A
3
3
9
 

H
o

u
si

n
g
 T

e
n

a
n

c
y
 M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
- 

1
0
 

T
o
 

re
vi

ew
 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

co
n
tr

o
l 

o
ve

r 
te

n
an

cy
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

in
 

p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

th
e 

u
n
au

th
o
ri

se
d
 

su
b
 

le
tt

in
g 

o
f 

co
u
n
ci

l p
ro

p
er

ti
es

. 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
si

n
g 

&
 C

it
y 

Su
p
p
o
rt

 
Q

u
ar

te
r 

1
 

A
3
4
0
 

T
e
m

p
o

ra
ry

 A
c
c
o

m
m

o
d

a
ti

o
n

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

C
R

2
 

2
0
 

T
h
is

 r
ev

ie
w

 w
ill

 e
va

lu
at

e 
th

e 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

o
f 

h
o
u
si

n
g 

te
m

p
o
ra

ry
 

ac
co

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
. 

 
T

h
is

 
w

ill
 

lo
o
k 

at
 

th
e 

p
ro

cu
re

m
en

ts
 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 
in

cl
u
d
in

g 
p
ro

vi
d
er

s 
as

 
w

el
l 

as
 
p
ro

ce
ss

es
 
fo

r 
m

an
ag

in
g 

ac
co

m
m

o
d
at

io
n
 s

ta
n
d
ar

d
s 

an
d
 c

o
st

s.
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
si

n
g 

&
 C

it
y 

Su
p
p
o
rt

 
Q

u
ar

te
r 

 3
 

A
2
9
0
 

H
o

u
si

n
g
 D

e
c
e
n

t 
H

o
m

e
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 –
 D

a
ta

 Q
u

a
li
ty

 
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
1
 

8
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 d

at
a 

q
u
al

it
y 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 f

o
r 

th
e 

d
ec

en
t 

h
o
m

es
 

n
at

io
n
al

 
in

d
ic

at
o
r.

 
 
T

h
is

 
fo

llo
w

s 
ad

ve
rs

e 
co

m
m

en
ts

 
b
y 

th
e 

A
u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
 

o
n
 

th
e 

q
u
al

it
y 

o
f 

d
at

a 
an

d
 

to
 

m
ak

e 
re

co
m

m
en

d
at

io
n
s 

fo
r 

im
p
ro

ve
m

en
t.
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
si

n
g 

&
 C

it
y 

Su
p
p
o
rt

 
Q

u
ar

te
r 

1
 

A
2
9
0
 

A
d

u
lt

 
S

o
c
ia

l 
C

a
re

 
–
 

D
a
ta

 
Q

u
a
li
ty

 
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
2
 

8
 

T
h
is

 w
ill

 s
p
ec

ifi
ca

lly
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

d
at

a 
q
u
al

it
y 

o
f 
C

ar
eF

ir
st

. 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
si

n
g 

&
 C

it
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
Q

u
ar

te
r 

3
 

A
3
4
1
 

A
d

u
lt

 
S

o
c
ia

l 
F

in
a
n

c
ia

l 
A

ss
e
ss

m
e
n

ts
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
2
 

1
2
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

n
es

s 
o
f 

co
n
tr

o
ls

, 
in

 p
ar

ti
cu

la
r 

w
it
h
 s

er
vi

ce
 

ch
an

ge
s 

fr
o
m

 V
FM

 r
ev

ie
w

. 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
si

n
g 

&
 C

it
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
Q

u
ar

te
r 

 3
 

A
3
4
2
 

IC
IS

 C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y
 E

q
u

ip
m

e
n

t 
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
- 

8
 

T
o
 

re
vi

ew
 

th
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 
o
ve

r 
th

e 
IC

IS
 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
y 

E
q
u
ip

m
en

t 
St

o
re

. 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
si

n
g 

&
 C

it
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
Q

u
ar

te
r 

3
 

47



  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

In
te

rn
al

 A
u
d

it
 S

tr
at

eg
y

 &
 A

n
n

u
al

  
P

la
n
 2

0
0
9

-2
0

1
0

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

8
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 n

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
 P

ag
e 

 2
6

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 A
u

d
it

 &
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
R

is
k

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

A
u

d
it

 D
e
ta

il
s 

R
e
f.

 
A

u
d

it
 

R
is

k
 

R
a
ti

n
g
 

C
o

rp
. 

R
is

k
/s

 
A

u
d

it
 

D
a
y
s 

B
ro

a
d

 S
c
o

p
e
 

A
u

d
it

 O
w

n
e
r 

T
im

in
g
 

   
A

0
6
9
 

D
e
la

y
e
d

 T
ra

n
sf

e
rs

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

C
R

2
 

8
 

D
el

ay
ed

 t
ra

n
sf

er
s 

ca
n
 r

ep
re

se
n
t 

a 
si

gn
ifi

ca
n
t 

co
st

 t
o
 t

h
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l. 
  

T
h
is

 r
ev

ie
w

 w
ill

 e
x
am

in
e 

th
e 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 o
ve

r 
d
el

ay
ed

 
tr

an
sf

er
s 

to
 m

it
ig

at
e 

th
e 

fin
an

ci
al

 l
ia

b
ili

ty
 o

f 
th

e 
C

it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l. 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
si

n
g 

&
 C

it
y 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
Q

u
ar

te
r 

1
 

A
3
4
3
 

C
li
e
n

t 
B

il
li
n

g
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
2
 

1
5
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

co
n
tr

o
ls

 o
ve

r 
th

e 
va

lid
it
y 

o
f 

ch
ar

ge
s 

ra
is

ed
 a

n
d
 c

o
lle

ct
io

n
. 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
si

n
g 

&
 C

it
y 

Su
p
p
o
rt

 
Q

u
ar

te
r 

2
 

A
3
4
4
 

C
li
e
n

ts
’ 
 M

o
n

e
y
 

 
M

ed
iu

m
 

C
R

2
 

1
5
 

R
ev

ie
w

 c
o
n
tr

o
ls

 i
n
 r

es
p
ec

t 
o
f 

cl
ie

n
ts

’ 
m

o
n
ie

s 
to

 e
n
su

re
 t

h
at

 
al

l 
it
em

s 
ar

e 
p
ro

ce
ss

ed
 a

n
d
 i

n
te

re
st

 i
s 

ap
p
ro

p
ri

at
el

y 
ap

p
lie

d
. 

Sp
o
t 

ch
ec

ks
 w

ill
 b

e 
ca

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

as
 a

p
p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

to
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
at

 
cl

ie
n
ts

’ 
m

o
n
ey

 i
s 

b
ei

n
g 

ap
p
ro

p
ri

at
el

y 
sa

fe
gu

ar
d
ed

. 
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

H
o
u
si

n
g 

&
 C

it
y 

Su
p
p
o
rt

 
Q

u
ar

te
r 

1
 

 
 

 
 

3
8
1
 

 
 

 

  

48



  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

In
te

rn
al

 A
u
d

it
 S

tr
at

eg
y

 &
 A

n
n

u
al

  
P

la
n
 2

0
0
9

-2
0

1
0

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

8
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 n

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
 P

ag
e 

 2
7

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 A
u

d
it

 &
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
R

is
k

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

 C
o

u
n

te
r 

F
ra

u
d

 P
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

A
u

d
it

 D
e
ta

il
s 

R
e
f.

 
A

u
d

it
/A

re
a
 

R
is

k
 

R
a
ti

n
g
 

C
o

rp
. 

R
is

k
/s

 
A

u
d

it
 

D
a
y
s 

B
ro

a
d

 S
c
o

p
e
 

A
u

d
it

 O
w

n
e
r 

T
im

in
g
 

F0
0
1
 

In
v
e
st

ig
a
ti

o
n

s 
in

to
 

F
ra

u
d

 
&

 
C

o
rr

u
p

ti
o

n
 (

R
e
a
c
ti

v
e
) 

H
ig

h
 

C
R

2
 

1
4
0
 

C
ar

ry
in

g 
o
u
t 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n
s 

as
 a

n
d
 w

h
en

 r
eq

u
ir

ed
 i
n
to

 
re

fe
rr

al
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 i
n
to

 s
u
sp

ec
te

d
 c

as
es

 o
f 
fr

au
d
 a

n
d
 

ir
re

gu
la

ri
ti
es

. 
  
R

ef
er

ra
ls

 m
ay

 b
e 

re
ce

iv
ed

: 
 

Fr
o
m

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

 
R

ec
ei

ve
d
 v

ia
 t

h
e 

co
n
fid

en
ti
al

 a
n
ti
 f
ra

u
d
 h

o
tl
in

e 
an

d
 

w
eb

si
te

 
 

Fo
u
n
d
 f
ro

m
 i
n
te

rn
al

 a
u
d
it
 r

ev
ie

w
s 

ca
rr

ie
d
 o

u
t 

 
R

ec
ei

ve
d
 u

n
d
er

 t
h
e 

W
h
is

tl
eb

lo
w

in
g 

P
o
lic

y 
 R

ef
er

ra
ls

 w
ill

 b
e 

ri
sk

 a
ss

es
se

s 
an

d
 h

ig
h
es

t 
ra

te
d
 w

ill
 b

e 
se

le
ct

ed
 f
o
r 

in
ve

st
ig

at
io

n
. 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
rs

 1
 

- 
4
 

F0
0
2
 

C
it

y
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
’s

 
A

n
ti

 
F

ra
u

d
 

&
 

C
o

rr
u

p
ti

o
n

 F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

 
H

ig
h
 

C
R

2
 

2
0
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

fr
am

ew
o
rk

 f
o
r 

th
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

o
f 
fr

au
d
 r

is
k,

 
ag

ai
n
st

 b
es

t 
p
ra

ct
ic

e 
an

d
 t

o
 t

ak
e 

ac
ti
o
n
 f
o
r 

an
y 

ga
p
s 

id
en

ti
fie

d
. 
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
rs

 1
 

- 
4
 

F0
0
3
 

C
o

u
n

te
r 

F
ra

u
d

 
S

tr
a
te

g
y
, 

F
ra

u
d

 
R

e
sp

o
n

se
 

P
la

n
, 

a
n

d
 

o
th

e
r 

P
ro

to
c
o

ls
 a

n
d

 G
u

id
a
n

c
e
. 

 

H
ig

h
 

C
R

2
 

2
0
 

O
n
go

in
g 

re
vi

ew
 o

f 
p
o
lic

ie
s,

 p
ro

to
co

ls
 a

n
d
 g

u
id

an
ce

 t
o
 e

n
su

re
 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
an

d
 c

u
rr

en
t.
  
W

h
er

e 
co

n
si

d
er

ed
 n

ec
es

sa
ry

 
ap

p
ro

p
ri

at
e 

o
n
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

re
vi

se
d
, 
ap

p
ro

ve
d
 a

n
d
 i
m

p
le

m
en

te
d
. 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
rs

 1
 

- 
4
 

F0
1
5
 

S
a
n

c
ti

o
n

s 
P

o
li
c
y
 

a
n

d
 

A
rr

a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
2
 

1
0
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 

th
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

ls
 S

an
ct

io
n
s 

P
o
lic

y/
s.

 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

2
1
 

F0
0
6
 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 

F
ra

u
d

 
In

it
ia

ti
v
e
 

(N
F

I)
  

2
0
0
8
/0

9
 

 

H
ig

h
 

C
R

2
 

2
5
 

T
o
 
co

m
p
le

te
 t

h
e 

N
at

io
n
al

 F
ra

u
d
 
In

it
ia

ti
ve

 
ex

er
ci

se
 f

o
r 

th
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l. 
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n
cl

u
d
e 

in
ve

st
ig

at
in

g 
si

gn
ifi

ca
n
t 

d
at

a 
m

at
ch

es
 

an
d
 

in
st

ig
at

in
g 

re
co

ve
ry

. 
 

T
o
 

fu
rt

h
er

 
co

n
si

d
er

 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

to
 c

o
n
tr

o
ls

 t
o
 m

it
ig

at
e 

fu
tu

re
 f
ra

u
d
 r

is
k.

 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
-

4
 

F0
0
8
 

M
o

n
e
y
 L

a
u

n
d

e
ri

n
g
 S

tr
a
te

g
y
 a

n
d

 
A

rr
a
n

g
e
m

e
n

ts
 

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
2
 

8
 

R
ev

ie
w

 o
f 

m
o
n
ey

 l
au

n
d
er

in
g 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 (

in
cl

u
d
in

g 
P
o
lic

y)
 

an
d
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
ce

 w
it
h
 2

0
0
7
 r

eg
u
la

ti
o
n
s.

 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
rs

 1
  

F0
1
4
 

R
IP

A
 

a
n

d
 

S
u

rv
e
il
la

n
c
e
 

P
ro

c
e
d

u
re

s 
M

ed
iu

m
 

 
8
 

R
ev

ie
w

 t
h
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l’s
 p

ro
ce

d
u
re

s 
an

d
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
ce

 w
it
h
 

st
at

u
to

ry
 a

n
d
 b

es
t 

p
ra

ct
ic

e 
gu

id
an

ce
. 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
rs

 3
 

F0
0
5
 

F
ra

u
d

 A
w

a
re

n
e
ss

 T
ra

in
in

g
 

  

- 
C

R
2
 

2
5
 

T
o
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s 
tr

ai
n
in

g 
ac

ro
ss

 t
h
e 

C
o
u
n
ci

l. 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
rs

 2
 

- 
4
 

49



  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

In
te

rn
al

 A
u
d

it
 S

tr
at

eg
y

 &
 A

n
n

u
al

  
P

la
n
 2

0
0
9

-2
0

1
0

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

8
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 n

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
 P

ag
e 

 2
8

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 A
u

d
it

 &
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
R

is
k

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

A
u

d
it

 D
e
ta

il
s 

R
e
f.

 
A

u
d

it
/A

re
a
 

R
is

k
 

R
a
ti

n
g
 

C
o

rp
. 

R
is

k
/s

 
A

u
d

it
 

D
a
y
s 

B
ro

a
d

 S
c
o

p
e
 

A
u

d
it

 O
w

n
e
r 

T
im

in
g
 

F0
1
1
 

A
g
e
n

c
y
 L

ia
is

o
n

 a
n

d
 i

n
te

ll
ig

e
n

c
e
 

e
x
c
h

a
n

g
e
 

   

- 
C

R
2
 

8
 

L
ia

is
o
n
 a

n
d
 i
n
fo

rm
at

io
n
 e

x
ch

an
ge

 w
it
h
 P

o
lic

e 
an

d
 o

th
er

 A
n
ti
 

Fr
au

d
 A

ge
n
ci

es
 i
n
cl

u
d
in

g 
P
o
lic

e,
 D

W
P
 a

n
d
 N

H
S.

 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
rs

 1
 

- 
4
 

F0
0
4
 

W
h

is
tl

e
b

lo
w

in
g
 

   

M
ed

iu
m

 
C

R
2
 

1
5
 

T
o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

p
ro

ce
d
u
re

s,
 i
n
 p

ar
ti
cu

la
r 

ro
le

s 
an

d
 

re
sp

o
n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 o
f 
m

an
ag

er
s 

an
d
 e

ff
ec

ti
ve

s 
ca

se
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
in

  
ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
it
h
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n
. 
 I
t 

w
ill

 a
ls

o
 r

ev
ie

w
 t

h
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

en
es

s 
o
f 
th

e 
P
o
lic

y 
it
se

lf 
an

d
 t

h
e 

co
m

m
u
n
ic

at
io

n
 t

o
 

en
su

re
 m

ee
ts

 b
es

t 
p
ra

ct
ic

e.
  
A

 B
ri

ti
sh

 S
ta

n
d
ar

d
 i
s 

cu
rr

en
tl
y 

in
 

b
ei

n
g 

d
ev

el
o
p
ed

 a
n
d
 i
f 
im

p
le

m
en

te
d
, 
th

is
 r

ev
ie

w
 w

ill
 s

ee
k 

to
 

re
vi

ew
 t

h
e 

C
it
y 

C
o
u
n
ci

l’s
 p

ro
ce

d
u
re

s 
ag

ai
n
st

 t
h
is

. 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

St
ra

te
gy

 
&

 G
o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

 
 

 
 

2
7
9
 

 
 

 

 

50



  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

In
te

rn
al

 A
u
d

it
 S

tr
at

eg
y

 &
 A

n
n

u
al

  
P

la
n
 2

0
0
9

-2
0

1
0

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

8
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 n

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
 P

ag
e 

 2
9

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 A
u

d
it

 &
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
R

is
k

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

C
o

rp
o

ra
te

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 
A

u
d

it
 D

e
ta

il
s 

R
e
f.

 
A

u
d

it
/A

re
a
 

R
is

k
 

R
a
ti

n
g
 

C
o

rp
. 

R
is

k
/s

 
A

u
d

it
 

D
a
y
s 

B
ro

a
d

 S
c
o

p
e
 

A
u

d
it

 O
w

n
e
r 

T
im

in
g
 

A
1
0
4
 

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

it
te

e
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

  

- 
- 

2
0
 

P
ro

vi
d
in

g 
su

p
p
o
rt

 
in

cl
u
d
in

g 
ad

vi
ce

 
an

d
 

re
p
o
rt

in
g 

to
 

A
u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
it
te

e.
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 

R
es

o
u
rc

es
 

&
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

St
ra

te
gy

 
&

 G
o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

 

Q
u
ar

te
rs

 1
 

- 
4
 

A
1
0
7
 

S
e
c
ti

o
n

 1
5
1
 O

ff
ic

e
r 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 
- 

- 
2
0
 

T
o
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

th
e 

n
ec

es
sa

ry
 a

ss
u
ra

n
ce

 a
n
d
 e

vi
d
en

ce
 t

h
at

 w
ill

 
al

lo
w

 t
h
e 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 
Fi

n
an

ce
 a

n
d
 P

ro
p
er

ty
 t

o
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

 h
er

 
st

at
u
to

ry
 1

5
1
 r

es
p
o
n
si

b
ili

ti
es

. 
 T

h
e 

su
p
p
o
rt

 w
ill

 i
n
cl

u
d
e 

th
at

 
gi

ve
n
 t

o
 t

h
e 

Fi
n
an

ce
 &

 R
es

o
u
rc

es
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
T

ea
m

. 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

Q
u
ar

te
rs

 1
 

- 
4
 

A
1
0
4
 

C
o

m
m

it
te

e
/M

e
m

b
e
rs

 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
 

G
e
n

e
ra

l 
- 

- 
1
0
 

P
ro

vi
d
in

g 
su

p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 o

th
er

 m
em

b
er

s 
o
f 
ex

ec
u
ti
ve

, 
re

gu
la

to
ry

 
an

d
 o

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
n
d
 s

cr
u
ti
n
y 

fu
n
ct

io
n
s.

. 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

St
ra

te
gy

 
&

 G
o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

Q
u
ar

te
rs

 1
 

- 
4
 

A
1
1
7
 

A
d

v
ic

e
 

&
 

In
fo

rm
a
ti

o
n

 
to

 
D

ir
e
c
to

ra
te

s 
  

- 
- 

5
0
 

 
T

o
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

ad
 h

o
c 

ad
vi

ce
 a

n
d
 i

n
fo

rm
at

io
n
 t

o
 d

ir
ec

to
ra

te
s 

as
 

re
q
u
ir

ed
, 

in
cl

u
d
in

g 
p
ar

ti
ci

p
at

io
n
 
in

 
p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

b
o
ar

d
s 

an
d
 

w
o
rk

in
g 

gr
o
u
p
s.

 
 

V
ar

io
u
s 

Q
u
ar

te
rs

 1
 

- 
4
 

 
 

 
 

1
0
0
 

 
 

 

 

51



  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

In
te

rn
al

 A
u
d

it
 S

tr
at

eg
y

 &
 A

n
n

u
al

  
P

la
n
 2

0
0
9

-2
0

1
0

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

8
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 n

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
 P

ag
e 

 3
0

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 A
u

d
it

 &
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
R

is
k

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

G
ra

n
ts

 a
n

d
 N

a
ti

o
n

a
l 

P
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 I

n
d

ic
a
to

rs
 

 
A

u
d

it
 D

e
ta

il
s 

R
e
f.

 
A

u
d

it
 

R
is

k
 

R
a
ti

n
g
 

C
o

rp
. 

R
is

k
/s

 
A

u
d

it
 

D
a
y
s 

B
ro

a
d

 S
c
o

p
e
 

A
u

d
it

 O
w

n
e
r 

T
im

in
g
 

A
2
4
7
 

L
o

c
a
l 

A
re

a
 

A
g
re

e
m

e
n

t 
(L

A
A

) 
C

e
rt

if
ic

a
ti

o
n

 
- 

C
R

2
,1

1
 

1
2
 

T
h
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

o
f 

C
o
m

m
u
n
it
ie

s 
an

d
 

L
o
ca

l 
G

o
ve

rn
m

en
t 

re
q
u
ir

e 
u
s 

to
 a

u
d
it
 t

h
e 

ar
ra

n
ge

m
en

ts
 i

n
 p

la
ce

 f
o
r 

co
m

p
ili

n
g 

th
e 

gr
an

t 
cl

ai
m

 f
o
r 

p
ro

je
ct

s 
fu

n
d
ed

 f
ro

m
 L

A
A

. 
 T

o
 v

al
id

at
e 

th
e 

co
m

p
le

te
n
es

s 
an

d
 

ac
cu

ra
cy

 
o
f 

LA
A

 
sp

en
d
 

fo
r 

gr
an

t 
ce

rt
ifi

ca
ti
o
n
 p

u
rp

o
se

s.
 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
 

A
0
1
7
 

H
o

u
si

n
g
 B

e
n

e
fi

t 
S

u
b

si
d

y
 

- 
C

R
2
 

2
0
 

A
u
d
it
in

g 
th

e 
gr

an
t 

cl
ai

m
 t

o
 e

n
su

re
 t

h
e 

ac
cu

ra
cy

 a
n
d
 

co
m

p
le

te
n
es

s 
o
f 
th

e 
su

b
si

d
y 

cl
ai

m
ed

. 
 I
n
 p

ar
ti
cu

la
r 

th
e 

ro
b
u
st

n
es

s 
o
f 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 o

n
 t

h
e 

h
o
u
si

n
g 

b
en

ef
it
 s

ys
te

m
 a

n
d
 

su
b
si

d
y 

cl
ai

m
. 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

A
1
8
5
 

N
N

D
R

 G
ra

n
t 

- 
C

R
2
 

1
2
 

A
u
d
it
in

g 
th

e 
gr

an
t 

u
si

n
g 

so
ft

w
ar

e 
p
ro

vi
d
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
u
d
it
 

C
o
m

m
is

si
o
n
. 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

A
2
0
1
 

C
o

n
ti

n
g
e
n

c
y
 f

o
r 

o
th

e
r 

G
ra

n
ts

 
 

- 
C

R
2
 

1
5
 

A
u
d
it
in

g 
o
th

er
 g

ra
n
ts

 a
s 

re
q
u
ir

ed
 f
o
r 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

ti
o
n
 p

u
rp

o
se

s.
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

Fi
n
an

ce
 

&
 R

es
o
u
rc

es
 

 

Q
u
ar

te
rs

 1
 

- 
4
 

A
2
9
0
 

N
a
ti

o
n

a
l 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs
 S

e
ts

 (
N

IS
) 

/B
V

P
Is

 
- 

C
R

1
1
 

1
2
 

A
u
d
it
in

g 
n
at

io
n
al

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 i
n
d
ic

at
o
rs

/B
V

P
Is

 u
si

n
g 

to
o
lk

it
 

p
ro

vi
d
ed

 b
y 

th
e 

A
u
d
it
 C

o
m

m
is

si
o
n
. 

 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

St
ra

te
gy

 
&

 G
o
ve

rn
an

ce
 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

3
 

 
 

 
 

7
1
 

 
 

 

 

52



  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  

In
te

rn
al

 A
u
d

it
 S

tr
at

eg
y

 &
 A

n
n

u
al

  
P

la
n
 2

0
0
9

-2
0

1
0

 

M
ar

ch
 2

0
0

8
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
 n

  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  
  
  
 P

ag
e 

 3
1

  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

  
  
  

 A
u

d
it

 &
 B

u
si

n
es

s 
R

is
k

  
  
  
  
  

  
  

  
  
 

 O
th

e
r 

D
ir

e
c

t 
A

u
d

it
 A

c
ti

v
it

y
 

 
A

u
d

it
 D

e
ta

il
s 

R
e
f.

 
A

u
d

it
/A

re
a
 

R
is

k
 

R
a
ti

n
g
 

C
o

rp
. 

R
is

k
/s

 
A

u
d

it
 

D
a
y
s 

B
ro

a
d

 S
c
o

p
e
 

A
u

d
it

 O
w

n
e
r 

T
im

in
g
 

A
1
9
8
 

F
in

a
n

c
ia

l 
M

a
n

a
g
e
m

e
n

t 
S

ta
n

d
a
rd

 
(F

M
S

iS
) 

in
 

S
c
h

o
o

ls
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 

A
ss

e
ss

m
e
n

ts
 

 

M
 

- 
3
3
 

T
h
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

fo
r 

C
h
ild

re
n
, 
Fa

m
ili

es
 a

n
d
 S

ch
o
o
ls

 (
D

C
FS

) 
re

q
u
ir

e 
al

l 
sc

h
o
o
ls

 t
o
 m

ee
t 

th
e 

FM
Si

S 
b
y 

th
e 

en
d
 M

ar
ch

 2
0
1
0
. 
  

T
h
is

 is
 i
n
 p

ro
ce

ss
 a

n
d
 b

ei
n
g 

st
ag

ge
re

d
 o

ve
r 

th
e 

re
m

ai
n
in

g 
tw

o
 

ye
ar

s.
  
Fo

r 
2
0
0
9
/1

0
 1

4
 P

ri
m

ar
y 

Sc
h
o
o
ls

 h
av

e 
b
ee

n
 s

el
ec

te
d
 t

o
 

m
ee

t 
th

e 
st

an
d
ar

d
. 
  
T

h
e 

S1
5
1
 O

ff
ic

er
 w

ill
 n

ee
d
 t

o
 

d
em

o
n
st

ra
te

 t
h
at

 t
h
e 

st
an

d
ar

d
s 

se
t 

b
y 

th
e 

D
C

SF
 h

av
e 

b
ee

n
 

m
et

, 
o
r 

an
 a

ct
io

n
 p

la
n
 i
s 

in
 p

la
ce

. 
 W

e 
h
av

e 
b
ee

n
 c

h
o
se

n
 t

o
 

u
n
d
er

ta
ke

 t
h
e 

ex
te

rn
al

 a
ss

es
sm

en
ts

 o
n
 w

h
et

h
er

 t
h
e 

sc
h
o
o
l 

m
ee

ts
 t

h
e 

st
an

d
ar

d
. 
 W

e 
w

ill
 a

ls
o
 b

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 i
n
 p

ro
vi

d
in

g 
tr

ai
n
in

g 
to

 s
ch

o
o
ls

 a
n
d
 u

n
d
er

ta
ke

 r
e-

as
se

ss
m

en
ts

 o
f 
fa

ile
d
 o

r 
co

n
d
it
io

n
al

 p
as

s 
sc

h
o
o
ls

. 
 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
o
f 

C
h
ild

re
n
’s

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
Q

u
ar

te
rs

 3
 

&
 4

 

A
1
0
2
 

E
x
te

rn
a
l 
L

ia
is

o
n

 
- 

- 
1
2
 

E
x
te

rn
al

 l
ia

is
o
n
 w

it
h
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

an
d
 o

th
er

 p
u
b
lic

 s
ec

to
r 

o
rg

an
is

at
io

n
s 

to
 s

h
ar

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 o

n
 b

et
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

an
d
 a

re
as

 
o
f 
si

gn
ifi

ca
n
t 

ri
sk

. 
 

 

- 
Q

u
ar

te
rs

 1
 

- 
4
 

A
1
0
3
 

A
u

d
it

 C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 L
ia

is
o

n
  

- 
- 

2
0
 

 
L
ia

is
o
n
 a

n
d
 s

u
p
p
o
rt

 t
o
 e

x
te

rn
al

 a
u
d
it
 i
n
cl

u
d
in

g 
IS

A
s 

im
p
ac

t,
 

C
P
A

, 
A

n
ti
 F

ra
u
d
 &

 C
o
rr

u
p
ti
o
n
. 

 

- 
Q

u
ar

te
rs

 1
 

- 
4
 

A
1
0
0
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 R
e
v
ie

w
s 

 
- 

- 
3
0
 

 
T

h
is

 w
o
rk

 w
ill

 a
ss

es
 t

h
e 

p
ro

gr
es

s 
m

ad
e 

in
 i

m
p
le

m
en

ta
ti
o
n
 

ag
re

ed
 a

u
d
it
 r

ec
o
m

m
en

d
at

io
n
s,

 i
n
 p

ar
ti
cu

la
r 

h
ig

h
 p

ri
o
ri

ty
. 

 

V
ar

io
u
s 

Q
u
ar

te
rs

 1
 

- 
4
 

A
1
1
8
 

C
o

n
ti

n
g
e
n

c
y
 

fo
r 

u
n

p
la

n
n

e
d

 
a
u

d
it

 w
o

rk
 

- 
- 

1
1
7
 

C
o
n
ti
n
ge

n
cy

 
fo

r 
ad

 
h
o
c 

in
te

rn
al

 
au

d
it
 

w
o
rk

 
in

cl
u
d
in

g 
u
n
p
la

n
n
ed

 r
ev

ie
w

s,
 e

x
te

n
d
ed

 t
im

e 
fo

r 
p
la

n
n
ed

 r
ev

ie
w

s.
. 

 

V
ar

io
u
s 

Q
u
ar

te
rs

 1
 

- 
4
 

A
1
0
1
 

R
e
si

d
u

a
l 

a
u

d
it

s 
b

ro
u

g
h

t 
fo

rw
a
rd

 
fr

o
m

 2
0
0
8
/0

9
 

- 
- 

4
0
 

C
o
n
ti
n
ge

n
cy

 
to

 
co

ve
r 

th
e 

co
m

p
le

ti
o
n
 

o
f 

re
vi

ew
s 

b
ro

u
gh

t 
fo

rw
ar

d
 t

o
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t 
an

d
 is

su
e 

o
f 
fin

al
 a

u
d
it
 r

ep
o
rt

s.
 

 

V
ar

io
u
s 

Q
u
ar

te
r 

1
  

 
 

 
 

2
5
2
 

 
 

 

  

53



Internal Audit Strategy & Annual  Plan 2008-2009                          

March 2008                                                                  Page  32                                              Audit & Business Risk                              

 
 
 

Appendix  B 

Risk Categories used in Audit Risk Assessment 
 

Risk Category  Measures 
Control Risk  Management concerns 

 Nature of operations and pace of change 

 Relative complexity of systems and degree of 
likely error 

 Past breakdowns in control 

 Audit history including previous concerns raised 
and past audit opinions 

 Degree of recent change that has arisen in the 
system 

 Level of reported errors 

 Extent of dissemination 

 Political & Corporate governance structure 

 Level of fraud risk including incidence 

 Physical security and location 

 Interlinked and dependent systems (i.e. reliance) 

 Strength of support arrangements 

 Reliance on key staff 

 Identified risks in corporate, departmental and  
project risk registers 

Corporate Importance  Effect of any inability to achieve management 
defined and service objectives 

 Dependence on effectives systems and processes  
Corporate Materiality  Service costs 

 Financial value, type and volume of transactions 

 Potential losses from irregularity, inefficiency, 
illegality or failure 

 Assets at risk 
Value for Money and Service 
Delivery 

 Performance/KPIs (i.e. Outcomes) 

 Comprehensive Performance Assessment (CPA)  

 Projects and impact/risk 

 External audit & inspection issues raised 

 Poor areas of Value for Money 

54



Internal Audit Strategy & Annual  Plan 2008-2009                          

March 2008                                                                  Page  33                                              Audit & Business Risk                              

Corporate Sensitivity and impact on 
the City Council’s Reputation 

 Sensitivity/confidentiality of information 
processed 

 Legal and regulatory compliance requirements 

 Management concerns and sensitivities 

 Loss of credibility and public confidence 

 Censure by audit/inspection 

 Financial (grants, surcharges etc) 

 Reputational and adverse publicity risk 
 

55



Internal Audit Strategy & Annual  Plan 2008-2009                          

March 2008                                                                  Page  34                                              Audit & Business Risk                              

 Appendix C 
 

Internal Audit Charter 
 

1. Purpose 
 
1.1 This purpose of this charter is to set out the Terms of Reference for the provision of 

Internal Audit Service within Brighton & Hove City Council.  The Charter is reviewed 
and approved on an annual basis to ensure that cur rent needs are met. 

 
2. Role and Function 
 
2.1 Internal audit is an assurance function that primarily provides an independent and 

objective opinion and adds value to the City Council on the control environment by 
evaluating its effectiveness in achieving the organisation’s objectives.  It objectively 
examines, evaluates and reports on the adequacy of the control environment as a 
contribution to the proper, economic, efficient and effective use of resources.    The 
service is delivered by the Audit & Business Risk Division within the Finance & Resources 
Directorate. 

 
2.2 The control environment comprises the systems of governance, risk management and 

internal control. 
 

3. Reporting Lines & Relationships 
 

3.1 Audit & Business Risk provide the City Council’s internal audit function and are part of 
the Finance & Resources Directorate.  The Head of Audit & Business Risk reports 
functionally to the Chief Executive, Director of Finance & Resources (Section 151 
Officer), other Directors and members of the Audit Committee.  Administratively the 
Head of Audit & Business Risk also reports to the Director of Finance & Resources.    

 
3.1 The Audit Committee is responsible for approving the Internal Audit Strategy and Annual 

Audit Plan.    The Head of Audit & Business Risk reports regularly to the Audit 
Committee on progress against the Annual Audit Plan and key issues arising. 
 

4. Independence and Accountability 
 
4.1 Internal Audit will remain sufficiently independent of the activities that it audits to enable 

auditors to perform their duties in a manner, which facilitates impartial and effective 
professional judgements and recommendations.  Internal auditors have not operational 
responsibility.   

 
4.2 Internal Audit is involved in the determination of its priorities in consultation with those 

charged with governance.  Internal Audit has unrestricted access to officers, members, 
council records and to report in its own name.  

 
4.3 The existence of an internal audit function within the City Council does not diminish the 

responsibility of management to establish systems of internal control to ensure that 
activities are conducted in a secure, efficient and well ordered manner. 

56



Internal Audit Strategy & Annual  Plan 2008-2009                          

March 2008                                                                  Page  35                                              Audit & Business Risk                              

 
 
5. Statutory Role 

 
5.1 Internal auditing is provided as a statutory service in the context of the Accounts & Audit 

Regulations 2003 (as amended 2006), which states that a relevant body shall maintain an 
adequate and effective system of internal audit of its accounting systems and its system of 
internal control in accordance with the proper Internal audit practices. 

 
5.2 The statutory role is recognised and endorsed within the City Council’s Financial 

Regulations, which provides the authority for unlimited access to officers, Members, 
documents and records and to require information and explanation necessary. 
 

6. Consultancy and Advisory Role 
 

6.1 Audit & Business Risk also perform a consultancy or advisory role on an ad hoc basis or 
as part of the Annual Internal audit Plan, as requested by management.   Reports from 
this type of work contain findings and recommendations particularly to add value to the 
City Council’s services in achieving value for money in its use of resources.  Any 
consultancy and advisory work carried out shall not jeopardise the Internal Audit 
independence. 
 

7. Internal Audit Standards 
 

7.1 There is a statutory requirement for Audit & Business Risk to work in accordance with 
the ‘proper audit practices’.  These are effectively the CIPFA Code of Practice for 
Internal Audit in Local Government that accompanies the Accounts & Audit Regulations 
2003 (as amended 2006). 
  

8. Internal audit Scope 
 

8.1 The scope for Audit & Business Risk is ‘the control environment comprising risk 
management, control and governance’. This means that the scope of Audit & Business 
Risk includes all of the City Council’s operations, resources, services and responsibilities 
in relation to associated partner organisations.   The priorities for Audit & Business Risk 
will be determined by a process of risk assessment. 
 

9 Internal audit Resources 
 

9.1 Audit & Business Risk will ensure as far as possible that it appropriately staffed in terms 
of numbers, skills and experience.  The Head of Audit & Business Risk is responsible for 
appointing of staff and will ensure these are made in order to achieve the appropriate mix 
of qualifications, experience and skills. 

 
9.2 The Head of Audit & Business Risk is responsible for ensuring that the resources of Audit 

& Business Risk are sufficient to meet its responsibilities and achieve its objectives.  If a 
situation arose whereby he concluded that resources were insufficient, he must formally 
report this to the Director of Finance & Resources (Section 151 Officer) and the Audit 
Committee. 

 
 

57



Internal Audit Strategy & Annual  Plan 2008-2009                          

March 2008                                                                  Page  36                                              Audit & Business Risk                              

 
 

9.3 Where necessary to provide an adequate, effective and professional service the Head of 
Audit & Business Risk will outsource internal audit work to supplement internal 
resources but will ensure quality is not compromised. 

 
9.4 If Internal auditors are appointed from operational roles elsewhere within the City 

Council, they do not undertake an audit in that area directly within one year unless by 
prior agreement. 

 
10. Fraud and Corruption 

 
10.1 Managing the risk of fraud and corruption is the responsibility of management. Internal 

audit reviews alone, even when performed with due professional care, cannot guarantee 
that fraud or corruption will be detected.    Audit & Business Risk will, however be alert 
in all their work to risks and exposures that could allow fraud or corruption.  

 
10.2 The Head of Audit & Business Risk has lead responsibility for corporate counter fraud 

activities including proactive initiatives, maintaining and developing an effective 
framework, and advising management. 
 

11. Reporting Accountabilities 
 

11.1 A written internal audit report will be prepared for every audit carried out and issued to 
the appropriate manager responsible for the area under review.  Internal audit reports 
will include an ‘opinion’ on the risk and adequacy of controls, which together will 
contribute to the annual audit opinion on the City Council’s control environment. 

 
11.2 Audit & Business Risk will make practical recommendations based on the findings of the 

audit work and discuss these with management to establish appropriate action plans. 
 
11.3 Management are expected to implement all agreed recommendations within a reasonable 

timeframe.  Each internal audit will be followed up normally within six months of issue, in 
order to ascertain whether agreed actions have been implemented effectively. 

 
11.4 The Head of Audit & Business Risk reports regularly to the Audit Committee on 

progress made against the Annual Audit Plan and the summarised outcomes of individual 
audits. 

 
11.5 The Head of Audit & Business Risk provides an Annual Internal Audit Report to the 

Audit Committee that includes an opinion on the adequacy and effectiveness of the 
control environment. 

 
12.  Responsibilities 

 
12.1 In meeting its responsibilities, the activities of Audit & Business Risk will be conducted in 

accordance with the City Council’s objectives, established policies and procedures.  In 
addition, internal auditors comply with the Code of Practice for Internal Audit in Local 
Government (CIPFA). 

 
 

58



Internal Audit Strategy & Annual  Plan 2008-2009                          

March 2008                                                                  Page  37                                              Audit & Business Risk                              

 
12.2 Audit & Business Risk will co-ordinate effectively with the Audit Commission (as the City 

Council’s appointed external auditors) for optimal audit coverage   and to ensure that 
appropriate reliance can be placed on internal audit work. 

 
12.3 Audit & Business Risk will work the internal audit functions of the City Council’s partner 

organisations to ensure the robustness of controls and risk management arrangements, 
to protect the City Council’s interests. 

 
  

59



Internal Audit Strategy & Annual  Plan 2008-2009                          

March 2008                                                                  Page  38                                              Audit & Business Risk                              

Appendix D 

 

Our Service Performance Targets 
 

Aspect of Service Performance Indicators Target 
Cost and Quality 
of Input 

 Service costs  

 Planned days delivered 

 Productive/direct  time as % of total time 

 Within budget 

 100% 

 71% 
 

Productivity and 
Process
Efficiency

 Achievement of annual plan (%) 

 Delivery of high risk audits (%) 

 Issue of draft report after completion of 
fieldwork 

 Client responses received to draft audit 
reports from issue 

 Issue of final report after agreement with 
client of draft 

 

 95% Minimum 

 100% 

 Within 10 Days 

 Within 15 Days 

 Within 10 Days 

Quality of Output  Client satisfaction levels (including added 
value from audit recommendations), 
source customer satisfaction 
questionnaires 

 External audit reliance on work of 
internal audit 

 

 90% of scores 
within good to 
very good 

 

 Reliance placed 

Compliance with 
Professional
Standards

 CIPFA Code of Practice for Internal 
Audit in Local Government (2006) 

 
 

 100% compliant   

Outcomes and 
degree of 
influence

 Implementation of agreed 
recommendations  

 CAA Use of Resources 
 

 98% of High 
Priority 
Recommendation 

 85% of Medium 
Priority 
Recommendations 

 Minimum Level 3 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

60



61



62



63



64



        Page 1 of 6  

  Brighton & Hove City Council  
 Corporate Risk Register 2009/2010        

 The Risk Scenarios are set in order of highest risk score 
 

Council priorities:  
1 = Protect the environment while growing the economy   
2= Make better use of public money    
3= Fair enforcement of the law   
4= Reduce inequality by improving opportunities   
5 = Open and effective city leadership 

1 

Risk 

No. 
Risk Summary  Risk Scenario  

A potential or actual risk or opportunity which needs to be managed in order 
to better achieve the Council’s objectives 
 

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d

  
(L
) 
 

S
c
o
re

 

Im
p
a
c
t 
( 
I)
 

S
c
o
re
 

R
is
k
 S
c
o
re
 L
 x
 I
 

  
 (

D
o
t 

in
d

ic
a
te

s
 R

A
G

 

ra
ti
n
g
) 

 

Officers 
(Bold 

denotes Risk 

Owner, plain 

text details 

lead 

practitioner) 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

3 LONG TERM 
FUNDING FOR 
EDUCATIONAL 
PREMISES  

 

The council will need to address the long term implications of the condition 
and deterioration of its educational premises in relation to delivering 21st 
century Education. It will need to consider and evaluate the available options, 
e.g. Building Schools for the Future, Primary Strategy and the Academy, and 
provide appropriate project resources in order to secure maximum investment 
for city schools. 

5 4 20 

● 
RED 

Director of 
Children’s 
Services 

2 

14 

 

 
 

 

EQUAL PAY  
 
 

All councils in the UK need to review and revise their pay schemes to ensure 
full compliance with equal pay legislation whilst continuing to ensure effective 
service delivery. Failure to do so may result in litigation and industrial 
relations problems.  Robust evaluation of all jobs and negotiation with trade 
unions on resolving any outstanding equal pay liability and establishing fair 
pay schemes into the future needs to be carefully undertaken to ensure the 
most cost effective outcome (in an increasingly complex national legal 
environment) 
 

5 4 20 

● 
RED 

Director of 
Strategy & 
Governanc
e 
Head of HR 

 

4, 
2, 
3 

5 BRIGHTON 
CENTRE 
 
 

The needs of the conference and convention market are increasingly unmet 
by the ageing Centre. The economy of the city relies heavily on the revenues 
brought in by this market. A significant opportunity to provide world class 
convention and hotel facilities and enhance city centre retailing exists. The 
agreement of Heads of Terms with Standard Life Investments has triggered 
the procurement process to appoint a professional development team to 
undertake a first stage feasibility study and design, the purpose of which is to 
identify and define a viable scheme. 

5 4 20 

● 
RED 

 

Director 
Culture & 
Enterprise 
Assistant 

Director 

Projects & 

Venues 

1 

6
5



        Page 2 of 6  

  Brighton & Hove City Council  
 Corporate Risk Register 2009/2010        

 The Risk Scenarios are set in order of highest risk score 
 

Council priorities:  
1 = Protect the environment while growing the economy   
2= Make better use of public money    
3= Fair enforcement of the law   
4= Reduce inequality by improving opportunities   
5 = Open and effective city leadership 

2 

Risk 

No. 
Risk Summary  Risk Scenario  

A potential or actual risk or opportunity which needs to be managed in order 
to better achieve the Council’s objectives 
 

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d

  
(L
) 
 

S
c
o
re

 

Im
p
a
c
t 
( 
I)
 

S
c
o
re
 

R
is
k
 S
c
o
re
 L
 x
 I
 

  
 (

D
o
t 

in
d

ic
a
te

s
 R

A
G

 

ra
ti
n
g
) 

 

Officers 
(Bold 

denotes Risk 

Owner, plain 

text details 

lead 

practitioner) 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

9 
 
 

MAJOR PROJECTS  
 

The successful delivery of our major building and infrastructure projects, 
linked to high quality architecture and an efficient transport system, has a 
direct impact on the city’s reputation as a successful place to do business for 
investors and funders alike. In light of the international and national economic 
downturn and financial markets, the city needs to continue to secure the 
confidence and funding to prioritise and deliver those projects which have the 
greatest change of success. It will be important to encourage a stronger focus 
on pre-application planning activity to inform the development process from 
an early stage to help minimise the risks associated with projects not securing 
planning permission. 

4 4 16 
 

● 
RED 

 

Director 
Culture & 
Enterprise, 
Director 
Environme
nt 
Assistant 

Director 

Projects & 

Venues, 

Assistant 

Director 

City Planner  

1 

13 
 
 

WASTE 
REDUCTION & 
DISPOSAL 
 

The Waste PFI is progressing & new facilities are completed or are under 
construction. There are continuing & increasing demands, e.g. clarification of 
definition of Waste by DEFRA, penalties/fines for exceeding the Government 
imposed limits on landfilling of biodegradable waste. It is essential that the 
arrangements that the council has put in place deliver a successful and cost-
effective solution, that delays in building a new waste infrastructure are 
minimised, and the waste levels are curtailed and recycling rates increased 

4 4 

 
16 

● 
RED 

Director of 
Environme

nt, Assistant 
Director 

City Clean 

and Parks 
 

2 

6
6



        Page 3 of 6  

  Brighton & Hove City Council  
 Corporate Risk Register 2009/2010        

 The Risk Scenarios are set in order of highest risk score 
 

Council priorities:  
1 = Protect the environment while growing the economy   
2= Make better use of public money    
3= Fair enforcement of the law   
4= Reduce inequality by improving opportunities   
5 = Open and effective city leadership 

3 

Risk 

No. 
Risk Summary  Risk Scenario  

A potential or actual risk or opportunity which needs to be managed in order 
to better achieve the Council’s objectives 
 

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d

  
(L
) 
 

S
c
o
re

 

Im
p
a
c
t 
( 
I)
 

S
c
o
re
 

R
is
k
 S
c
o
re
 L
 x
 I
 

  
 (

D
o
t 

in
d

ic
a
te

s
 R

A
G

 

ra
ti
n
g
) 

 

Officers 
(Bold 

denotes Risk 

Owner, plain 

text details 

lead 

practitioner) 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

7 BUSINESS 
CONTINUITY  
CAPACITY 
 
 

The council’s ability to withstand short term or long term interruption to the 
delivery of its own services or those of its significant partners will need to be 
effective and enable the council’s continual delivery of quality services. This 
involves pro-active measures to protect against interruption and effective 
planning, which is regularly tested & reviewed, to enable recovery to 
predetermined operating levels in the shortest time possible and at the best 
cost 

4 4 16 
 

● 
RED 

 

Director of 
Environme
nt, Director 
Finance & 
Resources 
AD Public 

Safety, 

Business 

Continuity 

Manager 

All 

10 
 
 

SUSTAINABLE 
FUNDING FOR 
IMPROVING 
SOCIAL ISSUES 
 
 

In a city where there are challenging social issues and problems, much of the 
preventative and intervention work is funded by short-term initiative or grant 
monies. There is a need to improve the integration of both initiative and 
mainstream financial planning across priority areas and major partnerships 
(e.g. LAA, PSB, CDRP, CYPT) to ensure work is focused and sustained to 
enable longer term measurable improvement. 

5 3 15 

● 
RED 

Director of 
Environme
nt, Director 
Finance & 
Resources 
AD Public 

Safety 

4, 
2 

2 
 
 

FINANCIAL 
OUTLOOK FOR THE 
COUNCIL  
 
 

The global and national economic situation results in real terms reductions in 
funding from central government particularly from 2011/12. This may include 
general grant, specific and area based grants and capital funding. At the 
same time: 

 

• Income will come under pressure, including capital receipt, 
investment income and other major income sources (parking, 

5 3 15 

● 
RED 

Director 
Finance & 
Resources 
Assistant 

Director 

Financial 

Services 
 

2 

6
7



        Page 4 of 6  

  Brighton & Hove City Council  
 Corporate Risk Register 2009/2010        

 The Risk Scenarios are set in order of highest risk score 
 

Council priorities:  
1 = Protect the environment while growing the economy   
2= Make better use of public money    
3= Fair enforcement of the law   
4= Reduce inequality by improving opportunities   
5 = Open and effective city leadership 

4 

Risk 

No. 
Risk Summary  Risk Scenario  

A potential or actual risk or opportunity which needs to be managed in order 
to better achieve the Council’s objectives 
 

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d

  
(L
) 
 

S
c
o
re

 

Im
p
a
c
t 
( 
I)
 

S
c
o
re
 

R
is
k
 S
c
o
re
 L
 x
 I
 

  
 (

D
o
t 

in
d

ic
a
te

s
 R

A
G

 

ra
ti
n
g
) 

 

Officers 
(Bold 

denotes Risk 

Owner, plain 

text details 

lead 

practitioner) 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

culture, planning, land charges). 
 

• Other spending pressures coincide with reduced grants and 
income, including equal pay, landfill tax increases, national 
insurance increases and pensions. 

 

• The Council Tax strategy envisages low increases in Council 
Tax.  

 
The service and financial planning process and its implementation, in terms of 
priorities and efficiency, must be able to cope with such a coming together of 
factors   
 
 
 
 

6
8



        Page 5 of 6  

  Brighton & Hove City Council  
 Corporate Risk Register 2009/2010        

 The Risk Scenarios are set in order of highest risk score 
 

Council priorities:  
1 = Protect the environment while growing the economy   
2= Make better use of public money    
3= Fair enforcement of the law   
4= Reduce inequality by improving opportunities   
5 = Open and effective city leadership 

5 

Risk 

No. 
Risk Summary  Risk Scenario  

A potential or actual risk or opportunity which needs to be managed in order 
to better achieve the Council’s objectives 
 

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d

  
(L
) 
 

S
c
o
re

 

Im
p
a
c
t 
( 
I)
 

S
c
o
re
 

R
is
k
 S
c
o
re
 L
 x
 I
 

  
 (

D
o
t 

in
d

ic
a
te

s
 R

A
G

 

ra
ti
n
g
) 

 

Officers 
(Bold 

denotes Risk 

Owner, plain 

text details 

lead 

practitioner) 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

15 
 

 

IMPROVING 
CONTRACT 
MANAGEMENT & 
COMPLIANCE  
 
  

The council has a large number of contracts of various types and 
complexities, including "one-offs" and partnerships .To improve consistency 
and the standard of outcomes will also includes focus on: 

• Health & Safety risks 

• Supply chain management 

• Business continuity arrangements for contracts where they form a 
significant part of service delivery or partnerships working 

 
 

3 4 12 

● 
AMBER 

Director of 
Finance & 
Resources 
Head of 

Strategic 

Finance & 

Procurement, 

Procurement 

Strategy 

Manager 

2 

1 

 

 

COUNCIL HOUSING 
STOCK CONDITION 
 
 

With the involvement of our residents, the Council is progressing a strategy to 
meet the shortfall in the capital investment required to meet the Government’s 
Decent Homes Standard.  A plan has been established which aims to bring all 
council homes up to the DHS during 2013.   
 
 

3 4 12 

● 
 

Director of 
Adult 
Social 
Care & 
Housing 
AD Housing 

Manageme

nt 

4 

6 
 
 
 
 

CIVIL RESILIENCE 
 
 

The Civil Contingencies Act 2004 requires all councils to have in place 
documented and tested plans to be implemented in the event of an 
emergency.  Whilst the council has made progress, it is important that the 
arrangements are maintained at all times and reviewed as circumstances 
change. Category 1 Responders under the Act are expected to seek 
accreditation under a new British Standard (BS25999) to do this will require 

3 4 12 

● 
AMBER 

Director of 
Environme
nt, AD 
Public 
Safety, 
Emergency 
Planning 

5, 
1 

6
9



        Page 6 of 6  

  Brighton & Hove City Council  
 Corporate Risk Register 2009/2010        

 The Risk Scenarios are set in order of highest risk score 
 

Council priorities:  
1 = Protect the environment while growing the economy   
2= Make better use of public money    
3= Fair enforcement of the law   
4= Reduce inequality by improving opportunities   
5 = Open and effective city leadership 

6 

Risk 

No. 
Risk Summary  Risk Scenario  

A potential or actual risk or opportunity which needs to be managed in order 
to better achieve the Council’s objectives 
 

L
ik
e
li
h
o
o
d

  
(L
) 
 

S
c
o
re

 

Im
p
a
c
t 
( 
I)
 

S
c
o
re
 

R
is
k
 S
c
o
re
 L
 x
 I
 

  
 (

D
o
t 

in
d

ic
a
te

s
 R

A
G

 

ra
ti
n
g
) 

 

Officers 
(Bold 

denotes Risk 

Owner, plain 

text details 

lead 

practitioner) 

C
o
u
n
c
il
 P
ri
o
ri
ty
 

investment and resources.  Manager 

17 INVESTING IN THE 
CITY’S 
SUSTAINABLE 
FUTURE 

 

Brighton & Hove is well placed to effectively develop a Sustainable future. It is 
a relatively compact city with some notable successes and progressive 
partnerships which recognise the sustainability of the city as a priority. Taking 
up opportunities to maximise improvements and taking action to manage 
threats will be key to success and will demonstrate cohesive, city wide 
leadership across partners which satisfies the public appetite for sustainability 
and generates further public support   

3 4 12 

● 
AMBER 

Director 
Strategy & 
Governanc
e,  

Head of 

Sustainability 

and 

Environment 

 

 

7
0



71

Document is Restricted



74


	Agenda
	104 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	112 Annual Audit and Inspection Fees Letters (Including Broad Coverage)
	Item 112 - Audit Commission Fee Letter

	114 Internal Audit Strategy and Annual Plan 2009/2010
	Item 114 - Appendix 1 - Internal Audit Strategy Annual Plan 2009-10

	116 Risk and Opportunity Management (ROM) Update - Corporate Risk Register 2009-10
	Corporate Risk RegisterItemAppendix116(fin)Update

	117 Part Two Minutes - Exempt Category 3

